
  

July 14, 2015 Village Board Agenda 
 

Revised Agenda  
Village Board Meeting  
Tuesday, July 14, 2015 at 7:30 p.m.  
Jackson Village Hall  
N168W20733 Main St  
Jackson, WI 53037 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Any Village Citizen Comment on an Agenda Item (Please sign in). 
 
4. Public Hearing - Conditional Use, Dasko, Fence Height Approval – Hunters Road. 
 
5. Consent Agenda: 

 Approval of Minutes for the Village Board Meeting of June 9, 2015. 
 Licenses. 

Operator Licenses: 
Pizza Station:  Patricia Krull 
 
Walgreens: 
Elizabeth K Theriault 
 
Main Street Mart: 
Brianna Haeflinger 
 
East Side Mart: 
Wendy Nicolato 
 
Jackson Pub: 
Tina Nelson 
 

6. Ordinance 15-03 - An Ordinance Repealing Chapter 7.14 C. (4), Hotel and Motel Registration 
 for Transient Lodging of the Municipal Code of the Village of Jackson.  

 
7. Budget & Finance Committee. 

 Bids Received for Old Ambulance 1250. 
 Pay Request #5 – Digester Improvement Project. 
 Change Order #1 – Digester Improvement Project. 
 Pay Request #6 - Digester Improvement Project. 
 Review of quotes for Painting of the Blue Water Tower – Tower Drive. 
 Jackson Water Utility Master Plan Update. 
 Reinstalling Cedar Creek Business Sign. 
 Potential Financing and Refinancing in 2015 – Ehlers. 



  

July 14, 2015 Village Board Agenda 
 

 
 

8. Plan Commission. 
 Concept Plan - The Laser Shop – Industrial Drive. 

 
9. Departmental Reports. 

 Update on Operation Finally Home. 
 
10. Washington County Board Report. 
 
11. West Bend School District Liaison Report. 
 
12. Greater Jackson Business Alliance Report.  

 
13. Mid-Moraine Legislative Committee/Mid-Moraine Municipal Report. 
 
14. Citizens to Address the Village Board. 
 
15. Closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats. § 19.85(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing 

of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, 
whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session; and, 

 Wis. Stats. § 19.85(1)(g) Conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is 
rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to 
litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved. The topics are matters relating to the 
Village-Town Revenue Sharing Agreement and Cooperative Boundary Plan. 

 
Reconvene into Open Session. 

 
16. Adjourn. 
 

Persons with disabilities requiring special accommodations for attendance at the meeting 
should contact the Village Hall at least one (1) business day prior to the meeting. 



 

June 9, 2015 Village Board Minutes 
Page 1 of 5 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Village Board Meeting  
Tuesday, June 9, 2015, at 7:30 p.m.  
Jackson Village Hall  
N168W20733 Main Street  
Jackson, WI 53037 
 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call. 

 

President Michael Schwab called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
Members Present: Trustees Mittelsteadt, Lippold, Olson, Emmrich, and Kruepke. 
Members Absent:  Trustee Kufahl 

 Staff present: John Walther, Brian Kober, Jim Micech, Chief Jed Dolnick, Chief John 
Skodinski, Kelly Valentino 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

President Schwab led the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. Any Village Citizen Comment on an Agenda Item. 
 

None. 
 
4. Consent Agenda: 

 

 Approval of Minutes for the Village Board Meeting of May 12, 2015. 
 Licenses. 
 Operator Licenses: 
 Pizza Station: 
 Amber Doede, Amber Wallace.  
 East Side Mart: 
 Carly Boettcher  
 Fox Brothers Piggly Wiggly: 
 Vanessa Medina.  
 Walgreens: 
 Savannah Heider, Shelley McNall, Aracely Navarro   

  Village Mart: 
  April Batchelor  
  Jackson Community Center/Jackson Park Concession 
  Renee Fisher, Angela Jeske, Brittany Korneli, Jessica Loomans, Gregg Rathke,  
  Kelly Valentino, Hannah Straub  
  Tattoo / Body Piercing Operators: 
  Jason Batten, Calen Curley, Rich Malnory 

 

Motion by Tr. Olson, second by Tr. Emmrich to approve the consent agenda items.  
Vote:  4 ayes, 0 nays, 2 abstention (Tr. Kruepke, Tr. Mittelsteadt).  Motion carried.  
 
 
 
 



 

June 9, 2015 Village Board Minutes 
Page 2 of 5 

5. Resolution #15-09 A Resolution Setting the Rates for Jackson Sewer Utility. 
 

Brian reported that this was a recommendation from the Audit.  Brian reviewed his memo.  
This is a simplified rate case increase at 3%.  Motion by Tr. Olson, second by Tr. 
Mittelsteadt to approve Resolution #15-09, A Resolution Setting the Rates for the Jackson 
Sewer Utility.          
Vote:  5 ayes, 1 nays (Tr. Emmrich). Motion carried. 

 
6. Resolution #15-10 A Resolution Setting the Rates for Jackson Water Utility. 

 

Brian reviewed his memo and reported that the new rates will start on July 15, 2015.  
Motion by Tr. Mittelsteadt, second by Tr. Kruepke to approve Resolution #15-10, A 
Resolution Setting the Rates for the Jackson Water Utility.          
Vote:  5 ayes, 1 nays (Tr. Emmrich). Motion carried. 

 

7. Budget & Finance Committee. 
 
  Pay Request #4 – Digester Improvement Project.   

 

The Board of Public Works and the Budget and Finance Committee recommended approval 
of Pay Request #4 in an amount not to exceed $64,742.11 to Sable Mechanical.   
Motion by Tr. Olson, second by Tr. Lippold, to approve pay request #4 – Digester 
Improvement Project in an amount not to exceed $64,742.11 to Sable Mechanical.      
Vote:  6 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried.  
 

 Bids for Georgetown Drive Reconstruction Project. 
 

The Budget and Finance Committee recommended approval of the Advanced Construction 
Company bid in the amount of $619,153.10.   
Motion by Tr. Emmrich, second by Tr. Lippold, to approve the Bid of Advanced 
Construction Company in an amount not to exceed $619,153.10.      
Vote:  6 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried.  
 

  Verizon Wireless Antenna Modification Project – White Water Tower – Contract 
 Amendment.   

 

The Budget and Finance Committee recommended approval of the item.  Motion by Tr. 
Mittelsteadt, second by Tr. Emmrich to approve the Verizon Wireless Antenna modification 
Project Contract Amendment.     
Vote:  6 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

8. Licenses.  
 

 Liquor Licenses. 
Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor  
KHD Ltd., DBA Jimmy’s Restaurant and Bar, Constintine Demopoulos Agent, premise 
located at N168 W21212 Main Street. 
 
Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor 
Jackson Pub LLC, Jon Zandi Agent, premise located at N168 W20594 Main Street. 
 
Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor 
Latest Edition Saloon, Martha Ellen Nimkie, premise located at N168 W20788 Main 
Street. 
 



 

June 9, 2015 Village Board Minutes 
Page 3 of 5 

Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor 
Pizza Station, Barbara L. Holtz, Timothy Holtz, N168 W22224 Main Street, Suite E. 
 
Class “A” Beer and “Class A” Liquor 
Fox Brothers Piggly Wiggly, Inc., Lori Byron Fox Agent, W194 N16774 Eagle Road. 
 
Class “B” Beer & “Class B” Monte Carlo Night to include Wine (February 6, 2016) 
Jackson Area Community Center, Jackson Joint Parks & Recreation, Kelly Valentino - 
Agent, N165 W20330 Hickory Lane. 
 
Class “B” Beer  
Jackson Park Concession Stand, Jackson Joint Parks & Recreation, Kelly Valentino - 
Agent, W204 W16901 Jackson Dr. 
 
 “Class A” Liquor 
G&O Ltd, DBA Simply Spirits, John H. Kruepke Agent, N168 W22224 Main Street. 
 
 “Class A” Liquor 
G&O Ltd, DBA Simply Spirits II, John H. Kruepke Agent, N168 W19490 Main Street. 
 
Class “A” Beer  
The Village Mart, John H. Kruepke Agent, W213 N16770 Glen Brooke. 
 
Class “A” Beer  
K&A Petroleum, DBA East Side Mart, Kurt H. Kruepke Agent, N168 W19490 Main 
Street. 
 
Class “A” Beer  
K&A Petroleum, DBA Main Street Mart, Kurt H. Kruepke Agent, N168 W22224 Main 
Street. 
 
Class “A” Beer  
Walgreen Co., DBA Walgreens #11676, Michael Rodenkirch Agent, N168 W21330 
Main Street. 

 

 Tattoo / Piercing Establishment License. 
Jason Batten – No Good Tattoos 

 

Motion by Tr. Olson, second by Tr. Emmrich to Approve the Liquor and Tattoo Piercing 
Establishment Licenses.          
Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays, 1 abstention (Tr. Kruepke). Motion carried. 
 

9. Park & Recreation. 
 

 Eagle Projects: Jake Landolt (Jackson Park Tank), Simon Daniels (Wooden Event 
Games), Robbie Kreiter (Tot Area Fencing Project). 

 

Kelly Valentino reported on the item.  She commented that Jake Landolt presented to the Park 
& Rec committee.  His project is to repaint the tank in Jackson Park.   
 

Simon Daniels presented his project to the board.  His project is to build wooden carnival event 
games.  He is looking to fundraise for the project and has support from his family.  Simon has   
the power tools to build the pieces.  His goal is to have the games prepared by the Ghoul Gala.  
Tr. Emmrich presented Simon with a check for $100 for the project. 
 

Robbie Kreiter presented his project to the board.  His project is to build fencing around the tot 
area on the East side of the Community Center.  Robbie is working with the Friends Group and 
they did unanimously approve financing his fencing project up to $2,500.   The cost is 



 

June 9, 2015 Village Board Minutes 
Page 4 of 5 

approximately $2,500 and he has raised approximately $1,000.  He has support from his family 
and the power tools necessary for the fence.  The pouring of the play surface is being 
coordinated with the installation of the fence.  Tr. Emmrich presented Robbie with a check for  
$100.   
 

Motion by Pres. Schwab, second by Tr. Emmrich to approve the Eagle Projects for Jake Landolt 
(Jackson Park Tank), Simon Daniels (Wooden Event Games), and Robbie Kreiter (Tot Area 
Fencing Project). 
Vote:  6 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried.  

 

 Action in Jackson Parade:  June 14, 2015. 
  Kelly reported that the Action in Jackson parade is on June 14. If a board member can 
  march in the parade let Kelly know asap.   

 

10. Board of Public Works. 
 

 Resolution #15-11 A Resolution Replacing a Sidewalk Location and Construction Policy for 
 the Village of Jackson, Washington County, Wisconsin. 
 Brian reported on the resolution and sidewalk policy.   

Motion by Tr. Emmrich, second by Tr. Mittelsteadt to approve Resolution #15-11 A Resolution 
Replacing a Sidewalk Location and Construction Policy for the Village of Jackson, Washington 
County, Wisconsin. 
Vote:  6 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried.  
 

11. Departmental Reports. 
 

John gave an insurance update that MPIC (Municipal Property Insurance Corporation) has 
been formed in place of the State Insurance Pool.    
 
John Walther reported that the Operation Finally Home Ribbon Cutting will be on Thursday, 
June 11, at 1 p.m.   
 
There is a community tail-gate fundraiser being planned for September 20, 2015, at the 
Community Center.    The event will be sponsored by several area organizations.   
 

12. Washington County Board Report. 
 

 No Report. 
 
13. West Bend School District Liaison Report. 

 

 No Report.  John Walther reported that Ted Neitzke will be at the August meeting. 
 

14. Greater Jackson Business Alliance Report. 
 

 Tr. Mittelsteadt reported that the next meeting will be on July 15th at the Community Center.  
 The state representatives have been invited.  There will be a legislative report in July.  
 They are gearing up for Action in Jackson, the 5K and the car show.   
  

15.   Mid-Moraine Legislative Committee / Mid-Moraine Municipal Report. 
 

John Walther reported that the next legislative committee meeting will be here tomorrow 
evening.     
 
 
 



 

June 9, 2015 Village Board Minutes 
Page 5 of 5 

16. Citizens to Address the Village Board. 
 

 John Walther gave a public service announcement and video from You Tube of “free 
running” in the park.  This was not an encouragement or promotion of the activities.     
 

17. Closed Session. 
 

The Village President announced that the Board intended to convene into Closed session 
pursuant to Wis. Stats. § 19.85(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public 
properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, 
whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, and, 
Wis. Stats. § 19.85(1)(g) Conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is 
rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect 
to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved. The topics are matters relating to 
the Village-Town Revenue Sharing Agreement and Cooperative Boundary Plan. 

 

 Motion by Pres. Schwab, second by Tr. Emmrich, to convene into closed session at 8:19 
p.m. to include the Village Board, Brian Kober, Deanna Boldrey, and Attorney St. Peter.  
Jim Blise and Dave Wagner were included for a portion of the closed session.   
Vote:  6 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 
 

Reconvene Into Open Session. 
 

The Village Board convened into open session at 9:45 p.m. 
  

18.   Adjourn. 
 

Motion by Tr. Mittelsteadt, second by Tr. Olson to adjourn at 9:46 p.m. 
Vote: 6 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried.  
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted by Deanna L. Boldrey, Clerk/Treasurer 











Impact Statement 

 

Annual water consumption estimate – N/A 

Annual Sewage generation estimate – N/A 

Vehicle trip generation – N/A 

Estimated number of vehicles and recreational vehicles to be stored or parked on site – N/A 

Proposed sign(s) (advertising business, industry, dwelling unit) – N/A 

General hours of operation – N/A 

Anticipated User profiles (for residential development) – N/A 

Proposed dates of construction and completion – upon village board approval 

Unusual conditions which warrant special attention (hazardous materials storage, fire hazards, 
odors, noise generation, etc.) – N/A 













NAME
POLICE CHIEF 

RECOMMENDATION

Operator's License Application:

Tina Nelson Jackson Pub Approve

Wendy K Nicolato East Side Mart Approve with Conditions per Memo

Elizabeth K Theriault Walgreens Approve

Brianna K Haeflinger Main Street Mart Approve

Patricia M Krull Pizza Station Approve



ORDINANCE #15-03 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CHAPTER 7.14 C. (4),  

HOTEL AND MOTEL REGISTRATION FOR TRANSIENT LODGING,  
OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE 

OF THE VILLAGE OF JACKSON 
 

 
 
THE VILLAGE BOARD OF THE VILLAGE OF JACKSON, WASHINGTON COUNTY, 
WISCONSIN, does ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. 
 Section 7.14 C. 4. of the Municipal Code of the Village of Jackson, Wisconsin is 
repealed: 
 
The registration record provided in this section shall be open for inspection of all law 
enforcement officers. 
 
SECTION II. This Ordinance shall take effect from and after its passage and posting. 

 
 
 

Introduced by: _______________________  Seconded by: _______________________ 
 
 
 
Passed and Approved: _________________  Vote: _____ Aye: _____ Nay 
 

 
 
_________________________________ 
Michael E. Schwab, Village President 

 
     _____ 
Attest: Deanna L. Boldrey, Village Clerk 
 
 
Proof of Posting: 
 
I, the undersigned, certify that I posted copies of this Ordinance on bulletin boards at the Village 
Hall, Post Office and one other location in the Village. 
 
Dated: _______________  Village Official:  ____________________________________ 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        
  
 
 
 
Deanna, 
 
 
 
 
Please place the following item(s) on the B & F and VB Agenda’s for July. 
 
 
Bids received for old Ambulance 1250 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Thanks, 
 
 
 
 
John 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  
 



 
 
 
MEMO: 
 
 
 
To:  Budget & Finance and Village Board Members 
 
From:  Chief Skodinski 
 
Date:  July 8, 2015  
 
Re:  Bids for old Ambulance 1250 
 
 
The Jackson FD received two (2) bids for the ambulance they are listed below: 
 
 
From a Mr. Koski    $4,573.00 
 
From “Big Red Fun, Inc.”   $1,525.00  
 
 
The bids are lower than what I was expecting to receive and as the fire department does not have an 
urgent need to sell the ambulance I asking that the bids be rejected.  The JFD will try a different 
avenue to advertise the ambulance. 
 
 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
Chief John Skodinski 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









 

Clark Dietz, Inc.  5017 Green Bay Road, Suite 126  Kenosha, Wisconsin 53144 T: 262.657.1550 F: 262.657.1594 

MEMO 
 
To:  Brian Kober, P.E. 
From:  Diane Thoune, P.E. 
Date:  May 27, 2015 
Subject: Jackson WWTP Digester Improvements – Digester #2 Inspection 
Copies:  Jeff Deitsch 
 
On May 21st I completed an inspection of Digester #2 at the Jackson WWTP with Jeff 
Deitsch.  This inspection was conducted to review the structural condition of the cover.  
Inspections by Sabel Mechanical and plant operators revealed significant deterioration of 
some of the cover’s structural supports.  Jeff stated that they are considering replacing the 
cross bracing in each truss with new stainless steel members.  The main truss beams will 
remain in place and be blasted and coated. 
 
I entered the digester through the access hatch and visually inspected the cover supports from 
a ladder.  Pictures from my inspection are shown below.  The digester structure had already 
been cleaned and painted.  The digester cover’s sidewalls, ceiling, and main truss members 
appear to be in good condition.  As shown below, the cross bracing on each of the cover 
trusses is in very poor condition.  The members show significant deterioration.  It appears that 
the beams are not continuous in some locations. 
 

 
 

 



MEMO 
Brian Kober, P.E. 
Page 2 

 
 
I shared the inspection photos with our structural engineer.  He stated that with the main 
members in good condition, blasting and painting is appropriate, as is using stainless steel for 
the cross bracing.  It appears that the existing connections are welded, and stainless steel is 
typically easily welded to plain steel.  If the existing connections are bolted, welding new 
connections is acceptable, or bolt with Type 316 stainless steel fasteners according to ASTM 
F593.  If the new cross bracing is to be welded to the existing steel, the welds should also be 
painted.  Another option is to install the stainless steel bracing and then paint everything 
including the stainless steel, provided the stainless steel surface has been prepared to receive 
paint.  This will allow the welds to be coated seamlessly.  If the stainless steel is not going to 
be painted, we recommend using Type 316 within the digester.  If the stainless members are 
being painted along with the rest of the steel, Type 304 will be suitable. 
 
Since the rest of the cover and frame are painted plain steel, however, stainless steel may not 
be the most advantageous option. It may be more cost effective to use plain steel with thicker 
angles than was originally used for the bracing.  For example, if the existing angles were 3/16 
or 1/4 thick, use 3/8 thick angles instead and paint those along with the rest of the steel.  The 
thicker material will still be significantly less expensive than the stainless steel.  We 
recommend the Village obtains two quotes from Sabel, one for replacing the cross bracing 
with unpainted Type 316 stainless steel, and one for using plain steel and painting the cross 
bracing along with the rest of the cover. 
 
Jeff also pointed out several bubbles in the roof surface.  He was informed by the contractor 
that the bubbles will be removed and replaced after the repairs are made to the cover and it is 
put back in place. 



















From: Diane L. Thoune

To: Mark@sabelmechanical.com

Cc: dirpubwks@villageofjackson.com; utilitysupt@villageofjackson.com

Subject: Jackson Digester Cover #2 request for quotation

Date: Friday, May 29, 2015 11:35:35 AM

Attachments: Secondary Digester Inspection 052115.pdf

Hello Mark,
 
I recently performed an inspection of the cover on Digester No. 2 at the Jackson WWTP.  As you
know, sections of the cover trusses are severely degraded and in need of repair.  Please see the
attached memo describing my findings.  The Village is considering various options for the cover
repairs and would like to request quotations from you for the following work:
 

1.        Replacement of existing truss cross bracing with plain steel, sized as indicated in the
attached memo.  All the existing cross bracing shall be removed and disposed of according
to the Detailed Specifications.  Fastening of the new bracing to the existing trusses shall be
the same the existing method.  All steel truss members shall be prepared and coated as
described in the Specifications and as completed on the exposed steel in Digester No. 1.

2.        Replacement of truss cross bracing with Type 316 stainless steel, sized to match the existing
members.  Fastening of the new bracing to the existing trusses shall be the same as the
existing method.  Coating of the cross bracing is not required.  The remaining plain steel
truss members and welds shall be prepared and coated as described in the Detailed
Specifications and as completed on the exposed steel in Digester No. 1.

3.        Completion of either Option 1 or 2 above by removal of the cover from the digester.  The
cover must be supported properly for safe removal of the structure and to prevent damage
and racking.  After the repairs and coating is complete, the cover shall be reinstalled on the
digester and placed back into service.

4.        Completion of either Option 1 or 2 above without removal of the cover from the digester. 
The cover shall be left in place and scaffolding assembled within the digester to properly
and safely perform the truss repairs.  Upon completion, the scaffolding shall be removed
and the digester placed back into service.

 
Also, I know we still have to clear up the remaining questions from Pieper about the mixing pump
pressure sensors and controls.  Our electrical engineer comes back from vacation on Monday.  I will
send out a request for a teleconference to everyone so we can discuss this.  Pieper does have the
new sensors back now, correct?
 
Please let me know if you have any questions, and I’ll be watching for your response.  Village staff
would like to have the remaining work of this contract completed as quickly as possible.
 
Thank you,
 
Diane
 
Diane L. Thoune, P.E.

mailto:Diane.Thoune@clarkdietz.com
mailto:Mark@sabelmechanical.com
mailto:dirpubwks@villageofjackson.com
mailto:utilitysupt@villageofjackson.com



 


Clark Dietz, Inc.  5017 Green Bay Road, Suite 126  Kenosha, Wisconsin 53144 T: 262.657.1550 F: 262.657.1594 


MEMO 
 
To:  Brian Kober, P.E. 
From:  Diane Thoune, P.E. 
Date:  May 27, 2015 
Subject: Jackson WWTP Digester Improvements – Digester #2 Inspection 
Copies:  Jeff Deitsch 
 
On May 21st I completed an inspection of Digester #2 at the Jackson WWTP with Jeff 
Deitsch.  This inspection was conducted to review the structural condition of the cover.  
Inspections by Sabel Mechanical and plant operators revealed significant deterioration of 
some of the cover’s structural supports.  Jeff stated that they are considering replacing the 
cross bracing in each truss with new stainless steel members.  The main truss beams will 
remain in place and be blasted and coated. 
 
I entered the digester through the access hatch and visually inspected the cover supports from 
a ladder.  Pictures from my inspection are shown below.  The digester structure had already 
been cleaned and painted.  The digester cover’s sidewalls, ceiling, and main truss members 
appear to be in good condition.  As shown below, the cross bracing on each of the cover 
trusses is in very poor condition.  The members show significant deterioration.  It appears that 
the beams are not continuous in some locations. 
 


 
 


 







MEMO 
Brian Kober, P.E. 
Page 2 


 
 
I shared the inspection photos with our structural engineer.  He stated that with the main 
members in good condition, blasting and painting is appropriate, as is using stainless steel for 
the cross bracing.  It appears that the existing connections are welded, and stainless steel is 
typically easily welded to plain steel.  If the existing connections are bolted, welding new 
connections is acceptable, or bolt with Type 316 stainless steel fasteners according to ASTM 
F593.  If the new cross bracing is to be welded to the existing steel, the welds should also be 
painted.  Another option is to install the stainless steel bracing and then paint everything 
including the stainless steel, provided the stainless steel surface has been prepared to receive 
paint.  This will allow the welds to be coated seamlessly.  If the stainless steel is not going to 
be painted, we recommend using Type 316 within the digester.  If the stainless members are 
being painted along with the rest of the steel, Type 304 will be suitable. 
 
Since the rest of the cover and frame are painted plain steel, however, stainless steel may not 
be the most advantageous option. It may be more cost effective to use plain steel with thicker 
angles than was originally used for the bracing.  For example, if the existing angles were 3/16 
or 1/4 thick, use 3/8 thick angles instead and paint those along with the rest of the steel.  The 
thicker material will still be significantly less expensive than the stainless steel.  We 
recommend the Village obtains two quotes from Sabel, one for replacing the cross bracing 
with unpainted Type 316 stainless steel, and one for using plain steel and painting the cross 
bracing along with the rest of the cover. 
 
Jeff also pointed out several bubbles in the roof surface.  He was informed by the contractor 
that the bubbles will be removed and replaced after the repairs are made to the cover and it is 
put back in place. 







Clark Dietz, Inc. - Engineers
5017 Green Bay Road, Suite 126
Kenosha, WI 53144
262.657.1550 - office
262.657.1594 - fax
diane.thoune@clarkdietz.com
www.clarkdietz.com
P Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

mailto:Diane.Thoune@clarkdietz.com
http://www.clarkdietz.com/






















June 25, 2015 
 
Mr. Brian Kober, P.E. 
Director of Public Works 
Village of Jackson 
N168 W20733 Main St 
Jackson WI 53037 
 
 
RE: Water Master Plan Update  
  
 
Dear Brian, 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to propose on the professional services contract for 
updating the Water Utility’s Master Plan. The addition of the Town of Jackson water 
main extension recently completed, was not included in the 2007 Water Utility Master 
Plan. The Master Plan update will incorporate this addition, and re-evaluate the current 
state of the Utility. This will allow the Utility to meet the long term goals and objectives 
of the Village. Included in this proposal is our scope of services and proposed fee for 
this project. 
 
If you have any questions or comments regarding this proposal please call me at 
414.559.6883. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
City Water, LLC. 
 
 
 
 
Thomas Nennig, P.E. 
Project Manager 
  



SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

Task 
1. Update Utility Water Hydraulic Model 

a. Verify additions to the model from recent Town of Jackson water main extension 
b. Update model to include any water main additions, and relay projects in the 

Village 

2. Update Water Demand 
a. Update water demand based on PSC annual reports. Demands will be used to 

develop detailed water usage by location, and customer class for the model  

3. Field Testing 
a. We will work with the Village in conducting field flow tests to be used to update 

the calibration of the model. SCADA data will also be used to help calibrate the 
model. The model will be calibrated to within industry standards. 

4. System Analysis 
a. After model calibration is complete a fire flow analysis will be conducted for the 

entire distribution system.  
b. Any deficiencies in system static pressure or available fire flow volume will be 

reported along with recommended improvements. 
c. Analysis will also be conducted for maximum day and peak hour demand 

conditions to identify and deficiencies in system operation 

5. Update Master Plan 
a. Using the updated projected growth pattern and the new service territory, we 

will update the master plan for the water supply and distribution system for the 
Village. 

 

FEES 
 
We are offering reasonable professional rates and a strong commitment to deliver COST-
EFFECTIVE services to satisfy your requirements for this project. Our proposed fee is $9,850. 



VILLAGE OF

ACKSOJ N

WATER ANALYSIS REPORT

2006





1 

Table of Contents 

CHAPTER 1- INTRODUCTION .................................................................................3 

1.1 Background ..............................................................................................................3 

1.2 Purpose & Objectives ................................................................................................4 

1.3 Scope........................................................................................................................4 

CHAPTER 2 – WATER DEMANDS ............................................................................6 

2.1 General..................................................................................................................... 6 

2.2 Relationship to Land Use Plan and Population Forecasts ............................................6 

2.3 Variations in Water Usage ....................................................................................... 10 

2.4 Water Demand by Customer Category .................................................................... 12 

2.5 Projected Water Usage ............................................................................................ 13 

2.6 Fire Demand........................................................................................................... 15 

2.7 Phasing of the System ............................................................................................. 15 

CHAPTER 3 EXISTING FACILITIES ...........................................................................16 

3.1 Water Supply .......................................................................................................... 16 

3.2 Storage ................................................................................................................... 20 

3.3 Distribution System................................................................................................. 20 

3.4 Hydraulic Analysis ................................................................................................... 22 

3.5 Adequacy of Existing Facilities ................................................................................. 23 

CHAPTER 4 PROPOSED FACILITIES........................................................................26 

4.1 Supply-Storage Considerations ................................................................................ 26 

4.2 Hydraulic Analysis ................................................................................................... 27 

4.3 Water Supply .......................................................................................................... 27 

4.4 Storage ................................................................................................................... 29 



2 

4.5 Distribution System................................................................................................. 32 

4.6 Water System Phasing ............................................................................................. 36 

CHAPTER 5- CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLANNING .................................................39 

5.1 Supply Improvements ............................................................................................. 39 

5.2 Storage Improvements ............................................................................................ 39 

5.3 Distribution Improvements...................................................................................... 40 

5.4 Capital Improvement Plan ....................................................................................... 40 

 



3 

CHAPTER 1- INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Background 

The Village of Jackson is a community of approximately 5,900 people located in Washington 

County. The Village is located approximately 15 miles North of Milwaukee and is considered 

one of the fastest growing communities in Washington County. The Jackson Water Utility 

provides water service to the residences and businesses within the Village limits, the Town of 

Jackson, Washington County Fair Grounds and the new St. Joseph’s Hospital in the Town of 

Polk. 

 

The Village’s water system consists of two pressure districts that are supplied water from five 

groundwater wells, two elevated water storage tanks, one booster station and a hydro-

pneumatic pressure tank system at the County Fair grounds. The distribution systems contains 

approximately 34 miles of transmission main and distribution watermains, ranging in size from 

4-inch to 16-inch.  

 

The customers of the Village’s Water Utility include 3 major industrial users, an area hospital, 

along with smaller industrial and numerous commercial and residential users. Approximately 

48% of the amount of water sold in the 

Village is attributed to residential customers. 

 

The Village of Jackson’s location with respect 

to the greater metro area, and a principal 

transportation corridor offers significant 

potential for continued growth and 

development within the Village’s water and 

sewer service area. Therefore, proper 

planning is critical to coordinate the proper 

expansion of the Village’s water system 

facilities for short-term and long-term needs 

of the Village. 



4 

1.2 Purpose & Objectives 

As the Village expands to new service areas and the current service area continues to develop, 

it is necessary to update the water distribution plan. In particular, it is necessary to develop a 

water system plan for the entire service area for the Village based on their Land Use Plan. 

Specific Objectives include: 

 

 Determine the potential water demands expected within the defined study area 

(Figure 1-1) as defined by SEWRPC, and the production and storage capacity required 

to meet those demands. 

 Develop a proposed transmission main system to serve the outlining areas of the 

Village 

 Determine the boundary line for the high and low pressure service districts 

 Determine short-term and long-term supply and storage needs in order to allow 

sufficient lead time for the addition of the facilities to the system. 

 Hydraulically analyze the existing and future system to identify system deficiencies and 

propose solutions to ensure adequate residual pressures. 

 Develop preliminary cost estimates for supply, storage, and distribution facilities to form 

a basis for a satisfactory financing program.  

 Provide capacities and locations of proposed new water storage facilities 

 

1.3 Scope   

The planning approach used for the study began with an evaluation of the existing distribution 

facilities and defining the future service area for the Village. The future service area was 

evaluated over a planning period extending beyond 2025. 

 

Population, community growth, historical and projected water demands served as the basis for 

evaluating and developing future improvements to the distribution system. The results from 

the Revenue Sharing Agreement and Cooperative Boundary Plan (2005) completed jointly by 

the Village and Town of Jackson and South Eastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission 

(SEWRPC) were used in forecasting the future growth of the distribution system. Future water 

needs were based on the project growth of the system and identified in Chapter 2.  



Ir
Io

A¡

Ib

?Ñ

PLEASANT VALLEY ROAD

JA
C

K
SO

N
 D

R
IV

E

SHERMAN ROAD

Figure 1-1
Study Limits

Map Document: (N:\841\84105119\Cad\GIS\mxd_projects\Study Limits 8-5 x 11.mxd)
4/24/2006 -- EOJ

Legend
Sanitary Sewer Service Area

Village Limits

Study Limits

p
0 0.5 10.25

Miles



6 

CHAPTER 2 – WATER DEMANDS 

2.1 General 

Capacity requirements for the three water system components of supply, storage, and 

distribution are dictated by the demands placed upon them for production and distribution. 

The design of the water supply and distribution system for the Village was based on estimates 

of the projected water demands. Phasing of the system improvements was based on estimates 

of short-term needs. 

 

Water demand (both peak and average) is affected by many factors including population, 

population distribution, commercial and industrial activity, water quality, water rates, climate, 

soil conditions, economic level of the community, sewer availability, water pressures and the 

condition of the water system. The most important factor is land usage, which encompasses 

residential and non-residential development. The water demand rates used in this plan are 

shown in Table 2-2. 

 

Projections of 2025 land usage and population for the Village were correlated with past and 

present water demands to develop estimates for 2025 water demands in the service area. 

Water use records through 2004 were used as the basis for the new water demand 

computations contained in this report.  

 

2.2 Relationship to Land Use Plan and Population Forecasts 

The Water Supply and Distribution Plan was prepared based on the Proposed Land Use Plan for 

the Village contained in the 2005 Revenue Sharing Agreement and the household and 

population forecasts from SEWRPC.  The future land use plan is shown on Figure 2-1. 

 

Population projections and water use forecasts were developed for 2010, 2015, 2020, and 

2025, by taking the net developable acres of developable land (as shown in Table 2-1) and 

multiplying by the appropriate factors in Table 2-2. The facilities described in this plan are 

designed to serve an ultimate population of 10,400. Actual growth rates will affect only the 



7 

timing of construction and not the actual design of the system. Table 2-3 summarizes the 

estimated total and served population projections used for this study.  



Ir
Io

A¡

Ib

?Ñ

PLEASANT VALLEY ROAD

JA
C

K
SO

N
 D

R
IV

E

SHERMAN ROAD

Figure 2-1
Generalized Proposed Land Use

Map Document: (N:\841\84105119\Cad\GIS\mxd_projects\Future Land Use 8-5 x 11.mxd)
4/24/2006 -- EOJ

Legend
Village Limits

Study Limits

1 & 2 Family Residential

Multi-Family Residential

Business

Industrial

Institutional

Park

p
0 0.5 10.25

Miles



9 

The estimated total population for the study area was developed from demographic 

information provided by SEWRPC. Demographic information is provided in Appendix B. 

 

Table 2-1 - Land Use Summary 

Land Use Type Acres Percentage 

Developed - Not served (existing 

residential served by private wells) 176 8% 

Developable Untilled Land 76 3% 

Residential (Includes Rural, Single Family, 

Suburban) 534 23% 

Total Residential 786 34% 

Commercial 38 2% 

Industrial 163 7% 

Government / Institutional 26 1% 

Park/Recreation/Golf 174 8% 

Undevelopable 1,131 49% 

 

 

Table 2-2 - Future Water Demand Rates 

Demand Rate (GPM/Acre) Land Use 

Type 

Persons/ 

Dwelling 

Gallons/ 

Capita/ Day 

Units/ 

Acre Average Day Maximum Day Peak Hour 

Residential 3 90 3 0.5625 1.125 2.25 

Commercial - 

1500 gpd 

per acre - 1.04 1.56 3.12 

Government/ 

Institutional - 

1500 gpd 

per acre - 1.04 1.56 3.12 

Park/ Rec/ Golf - 

500 gpd per 

acre - 0.35 1.04 2.08 

 

 

 



10 

Table 2-3 - Total and Served Population Projections 

Year 

Study Area Estimated Total 

Population - SEWRPC 

Estimated Served 

Population 

2005 7,075 5,884 

2010 7,866 8,920 

2015 8,657 9,872 

2020 9,448 10,000 

2025 10,239 10,400 

 

2.3 Variations in Water Usage 

The rate of water consumption will vary over a wide range during different periods of the year 

and during different hours of the day. Several characteristic demand periods are recognized as 

being critical factors in the design and operation of a water system. The demand rates are 

expressed in million gallons per day (MGD), which in the case of a daily demand indicates the 

total amount of water pumped in a 24 hour period. Hourly rates are also expressed in million 

gallons per day. In the case of an hourly rate, the rate in MGD is determined by assuming that 

the pumpage would continue at the indicated rate for 24 hours. 

 

The average day demand is equal to the total annual pumpage divided by the number of 

days in the year. The principal significance of the average day demand is to aid in estimating 

maximum day and maximum hour demands. The average day demand is also used in 

estimating future revenues and operating costs such as power and chemical requirements, 

since these items are determined primarily by the total annual water requirements rather than 

by daily or hourly rates of usage. Pumping records, which were used in determining average 

day demands, are presented in Appendix C. 

 

The maximum day demand is the critical factor in the design of certain elements of the 

waterworks system. The principal items affected by the maximum day demand are: 

 Groundwater water supply facilities, and 

 Water storage requirements.  

 



11 

The groundwater water supply facilities must be adequate to supply water greater than the 

maximum day demand rate with the largest groundwater supply well out of service. Sufficient 

water storage should be provided to meet hourly demands in excess of the water supply 

capacity. The installed capacities should also include reserves for growth, industrial 

development and fire protection.  

 

The maximum demands upon the water system are encountered during short periods of time, 

usually on days of maximum consumption. These short period demands are referred to as 

hourly demands, and they seldom extend over a period of more than three or four hours, 

generally during hot summer evenings when the sprinkling load is the highest. The Village’s 

maximum day occurred in 2003 at 1.35 MGD. However, the Village had experienced an 

unusually high amount of water pumped starting at the end of 2002 to the beginning of 2004 

due to an undetected leak in the 

distribution system. The leak was repaired 

in February of 2004 and the pumpage 

significantly declined. Therefore, the 

maximum day demand used for analysis in 

this report occurred in 2002, at 1.16 MGD. 

Total water pumped for the past seven 

years is shown in Figure 2-2. The demand 

variations for the maximum day, 

maximum month, and minimum month 

expressed as a percent of the average day 

demands are shown in Appendix C for the 

past seven years. The maximum day to 

average day ratio has been between 1.6 

and 2.1 with an average of 1.86 as shown 

in Figure 2-3. 

 

The maximum hour consumption rates 

impose critical demands on the distribution 

system, and major elements of the 

waterworks facilities must be designed to 

F igure 2-3
Max  Day to  Avg  Day Ratio

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

YEAR

RA
TI

O

F igu re 2-2
Water Pumped

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

YEAR

PU
M

PA
G

E 
(M

G
D

)

Maximum Day Average Day



12 

meet these demands and provide satisfactory service at all times. 

 

Maximum hour demands in Jackson are supplied through a combination of water from the 

well pumps, and water drawn from storage facilities in the distribution system. Although the 

rate of consumption is high during periods of maximum hourly demands, the duration of the 

extreme rate is relatively short. Therefore, a moderate quantity of water withdrawn from 

storage facilities strategically located in the system assures satisfactory service, minimizes the 

total maximum hour pumping and transmission main capacity required, and permits more 

uniform and economical operation of the pumping facilities. Storage in the system is also an 

important factor in insuring reliability of water service during emergencies resulting from power 

failure, temporary outages of water supply facilities, and sudden and unusual demands 

brought about by fires or line breaks. 

 

In the Village of Jackson, where the distances from the water supply sources to the storage 

facilities are considerable, another critical situation must be evaluated in designing the system. 

Storage tanks are refilled during the night and early morning hours when demand on the 

system is low. A strong network of piping is needed between the supply sources and the 

reservoirs to insure that a sufficient amount of water can reach the storage tanks during the 

refilling period to provide the required supply for the following day. 

 

The connected residential population, water usage, residential water usage, and total 

population served by the Village of Jackson was used to determine the per capita water use 

for the past seven years as shown in Appendix C. The total per capita water use has ranged 

from 98 gallons per capita per day (gpcd) to 138 gpcd. The per capita water use on the 

maximum day varied from 166 gpcd to 245 gpcd during the same period. 

 

2.4 Water Demand by 

Customer Category  

Analysis of past water usage by customer 

category provides additional insight into 

how water is being used in the Village, and 

where potential for conserving water may 

Figure  2-4
Water Consumption 1998-2004

Un-accounted 
for
2%

Accounted for 
losses
9%

Residential
48%

Industrial
27%

Govern-mental
1%Commercial

13%



13 

be found. Figure 2-4 illustrates the Village water consumption is 48% Residential, 27% 

Industrial, 13% Commercial, 9% accounted for loses, 2% unaccounted for water, and 1% for 

governmental. 

 

2.5 Projected Water Usage 

Estimated future water usage is based on population, land use, and water use trends. Peak 

demands vary with land use. High peak usage rates are experienced in low density areas 

during hot, dry periods due to extensive lawn sprinkling, while usage in high density areas 

depends on human consumption to a greater extent. Average daily usage for commercial and 

industrial areas is very high, but is much more stable than residential usage. Therefore, 

although commercial and industrial areas have high average usage, the peak usage (maximum 

day and maximum hour demands) is comparable to those in residential areas.  

 

Each of the land use categories was examined with consideration given to population density, 

area of lawns to be sprinkled and other activities likely to occur compatible with the projected 

land usage. Demand rates were then developed for each land use type.  

Total water usage at designated discrete points of demand on the water system was 

determined for the purpose of hydraulic analysis and system design. This was accomplished by 

dividing the Village into subareas whose total demand was assumed to be located at a 

designated point in each subarea. The subareas were then further subdivided into the various 

land use categories, based on the Land Use Plan. By applying the unit demand identified in 

Chapter 2, the total demand for each subarea was developed. 

 

Projected average and maximum day water demands are presented in Table 2-4. The 

maximum day water demands are used for the sizing of supply facilities. A record of actual 

maximum and average day demands should be charted to aid in the sizing and phasing of 

future water supply facilities. The maximum day demand at full development of the study area 

is estimated to be 2.29 MGD as shown in Figure 2-5. 

 

The estimated water demands used to design the plan are slightly higher to provide flexibility in 

meeting the Village’s needs in the future. The plan has the following built-in assumptions. 

 



14 

F igure 2-5
Project Annual Water Pumpage

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

1995 2000 2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030

Year

Pu
m

pa
ge

 M
G

/Y
r)

Anuual Water Pumpage

 Commercial/Industrial Water Use: The water use for any property can vary widely 

depending on their specific process, employment base, ability to recycle water, etc. 

Therefore, this report assumes an average water use of 1,500 gallons per day per acre 

for Industrial and Commercial land use. 

 Service to HWY 45 Corridor:  The plan assumes that ultimately Jackson will provide 

water service to the Area West of the HWY 45 corridor.  

 

Table 2-4 - Projected Avg. Day & Max. Day Demands 

Year 

Served Population 

(Estimated) 

Max. Day Per Capita 

Demand (gpcd) 

Average Day 

Demand (MGD) 

Maximum Day 

Demand (MGD) 

2000 4,998 197 0.49 0.99 

2005 5,884 205 0.65 1.21 

2010 8,920 215 1.03 1.92 

2015 9,872 220 1.17 2.17 

2020 10,000 220 1.18 2.20 

2025 10,400 220 1.23 2.29 

 

 



15 

2.6 Fire Demand 

Water usage for fire demand is also a vital consideration in the design of a water supply and 

distribution system. Fire demand varies greatly from normal usage in that an extremely large 

quantity of water is required from a single demand point in a very short time. The quantity of 

water used for fires is almost negligible when compared to other usage categories, but 

because of the extreme rate of usage during an emergency situation, fire demands frequently 

govern design. 

 

The Insurance Services Office (ISO) recommends that a system the size of Jackson's be capable 

of delivering a fire demand of 1000 GPM to 3500 GPM for varying durations depending on the 

rate of demand. A fire demand of 3500 GPM sustained for a period of three hours was 

incorporated into the design of Jackson’s water system. Table 2-5 shows the fire flows used in 

the design of the Jackson water system. The ability of the Village’s water system to meet fire 

demand is one of the three major components which are used to determine a rating for 

insurance. The other two components are building/fire codes and characteristics of the fire 

department. Each is used almost equally in determining an overall Village rating. 

 

 

Table 2-5 Recommended Fire Flows 

Land Use Required Fire Flow (gpm) Duration (hrs) 

Commercial / Industrial 3500 3 

Institutional / Public 3500 3 

Residential 1000 2 

 

 

2.7 Phasing of the System 

For the purpose of phasing additions to the system, water demands for each year are 

determined by multiplying the demand rates by the appropriate acres of each land type 

expected to develop by that year. Based on these assumptions, the average day demand in 

the year 2025 is expected to be about 1.23 MGD with a corresponding maximum day demand 

of about 2.29 MGD.  



16 

CHAPTER 3 EXISTING FACILITIES 

3.1 Water Supply 

General 
The water system operated and maintained by the Village of Jackson includes: 

 4 groundwater wells 

 2 elevated storage towers 

 1 high service booster station 

 Water system controls located at Village Hall 

 

A general location and layout of the water distribution system is illustrated in Figure 3-1. This 

chapter will discuss the operation characteristics of the existing distribution system.  

  

Existing Wells 
The Village of Jackson presently obtains its water supply from four municipal wells. The supply 

wells draw water from two primary aquifers, the shallow dolomite and sand and gravel 

aquifers. Both aquifers are highly susceptible to groundwater contamination due to their 

relatively shallow depth. Strict adherence to the wellhead protection plan established for each 

well is critical to the continued operation of each well. 

 

All four of the existing wells are located in the low pressure district and contain a gas chlorine 

feed system for water disinfection purposes. The well capacities range from approximately 75 

gpm to 1,100 gpm. The constructed depths of the wells range from 260 to 457 feet. Specific 

capacities for each well range from 

approximately 2.8 to 72 gpm per 

foot of drawdown. Figure 3-2 

summarizes the production of water 

supplied from each well between 

1998- 2004 for the Village of 

Jackson. Detailed well data is found 

in Appendix D. There is a fifth 

municipal well that is currently under 

construction that will provide the  

Figure 3-2
Water Supply Comparison

Well 3
41%

Well 4
29%

Well 1
23%

Well 2
7%



k9

k9

k9

"5

"5
"5

"5

"5

"5

"5

Ir

Io

A¡

Ib

?Ñ

Ja
ck

so
n 

D
riv

e

Pleasant Valley Road

Pleasant Valley Road

0 1,000 2,000 3,000500
Feet

Map Document: (N:\841\84105119\Cad\GIS\mxd_projects\Existing Distribution System 22 x 34.mxd)
4/26/2006 -- EOJ

Figure 3-1
Existing Distribution System

Legend

"5 Pumps

k9 Tanks

Pipes
4" Diameter Pipe

6" Diameter Pipe

8" Diameter Pipe

10" Diameter Pipe

12" Diameter Pipe

16" Diameter Pipe

Village Limits

Study Limits



18 

Village with an additional 1,000 gpm of capacity. Once the new well is operational, the Village 

is planning on abandoning well 2 and converting the old Cranberry Creek well to a sixth 

municipal well.  

 

Center Street (Well 1) 
Well 1 is located on North Center Street, north of Main Street. The well was constructed in 

1949 to a total depth of 260 feet. The well contains a 14-inch diameter outer casing to a depth 

of 20 feet and a 10-inch diameter inner casing to a depth of 117 feet. The well pump was 

recently replaced in 2005. The new well pump is rated at 370 gpm. The current static water 

level of the well is approximately 70 feet. In 2004, Well 1 contributed approximately 25% of the 

water delivered to the Village. 

 

Main Street (Well 2) 
Well 2 is located south of Main Street and west of Glen Brooke Road. The well was constructed 

in 1968 and backfilled with pea gravel up to a depth of 287 feet. The well was later backfilled 

with neat cement grout in 1990 from 287 feet to 272 feet. The well contains a multiple casing 

combination consisting of 24, 16, and 10-inch diameter casings. The 10-inch inner casing 

extends to a depth of 171feet. The designed capacity of the well was 300 gpm however, 

recently the Village has experienced large amounts of sand being pumped when the well was 

operated. Therefore, the pumping capacity of Well 2 has been reduced to approximately 68 

gpm to avoid pumping sand into the distribution system. The well operates under an artesian 

head. Specific capacity of the well is 2.8 gpm per foot of drawdown. In 2004, Well 2 has 

contributed only 4% of the water delivered to the Village. 

 

Highland Drive (Well 3) 
Well 3 is located on Ridgeway Dive and Highland Road. The well was constructed in 1979 to a 

total depth of 304 feet. The well contains a 20-inch diameter outer casing to a depth of 118 

feet and a 14-inch diameter inner casing to a depth of 155 feet. The current static water level 

of the well is 10 feet. The capacity of the well pump is 900 gpm. The specific capacity of the 

well is 72 gpm per foot of drawdown. In 2004, Well 3 has contributed approximately 30% of 

the water delivered to the Village. 

 
Cedar Parkway (Well 4) 
Well 4 is located on Cedar Parkway in the Village’s industrial park. The well was constructed in 

1997 to a total depth of 457 feet. The well contains a 20-inch diameter outer casing to a depth 



19 

of 400 feet and a 14-inch diameter inner casing to a depth of 432 feet. The well is in the sand 

and gravel aquifer and operates under an artesian head. The capacity of the well pump is 

1,200 gpm. The specific capacity of the well is 26 gpm per foot of drawdown. Well 4 has 

steadily improved since starting operation, and is currently supplying approximately 40% of the 

water delivered to the Village. 

 

Northwest Passage (Well 5 – under construction) 
Well 5 is located on Northwest Passage in the Village Business Park. The well was constructed 

in 2005 to a total depth of 215 feet. The well contains an 18-inch diameter casing to a depth 

of 175 feet, followed by 40 feet of screen that was developed with a natural gravel pack. The 

well is located in the sand and gravel aquifer and operates under an artesian head. The specific 

capacity of the well is 23 gpm per foot of drawdown. The well was test pumped over 1,200 

gpm with approximately 60 feet of drawdown. The current design of the well pump is for 

1,000 gpm.  

 

The total combined capacity of all five wells is 3,538 gpm, or 5.0 MGD. The firm capacity 

(capacity available with the largest well out of service) is 2,338 gpm or 3.4 MGD. 

  

Well Water Quality 
The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has established national drinking water 

standards. These standards contain federally enforceable maximum contaminant level (MCL) 

standards for substances known to be hazardous to public health.  

 

Water quality parameters are defined and regulated by two sets of standards - Primary and 

Secondary. Primary Standards are set for those substances known to be a hazard to public 

health. Secondary Standards are set for those substances that, although not hazardous to 

public health, frequently cause drinking water to have objectionable aesthetic qualities, such as 

taste and odor.  

 

The water quality at the wells and in the distribution system is tested regularly to ensure that 

water quality is within the Primary and Secondary standards.  

 



20 

3.2 Storage 

Maximum hour demands are supplied through a combination of water from the supply 

facilities and water drawn from storage reservoirs in the water distribution system. Although 

the rate of consumption is high during periods of maximum hourly demand, the duration of 

the extreme rate is relatively short. Therefore, a moderate quantity of water withdrawn from 

storage reservoirs strategically located in the system assures satisfactory service, minimizes the 

total maximum hour pumping and transmission main capacity required, and permits more 

uniform and economical operation of the system and pumping facilities. 

 

Storage in the system is also an important factor in insuring reliability of service during 

emergencies resulting from loss of power, temporary outages of water supply facilities, and 

from sudden and unusual demands brought about by fire. The storage tends to stabilize the 

peaks in water demand and allows the system to produce water at a lower, more uniform rate. 

 

The Village of Jackson currently has two elevated storage facilities located in the low pressure 

district, that have a combined capacity of 0.7 MG. Usable storage is defined as the storage 

available while still maintaining a sufficient residual pressure (within 40 ft. of the high water 

level). All of Jackson’s storage can be considered usable. A summary of existing facilities is 

presented in Table 3-1. Both existing and proposed water storage locations are shown on the 

Water System map at the back of this report. 

 

Table 3-1. Existing Storage Facilities 

Storage 

 Location 

Type of  

Storage 

 

HWL 

Service 

Area 

Usable Storage 

(MG) 

West End Elevated  1,065 Lower 0.5 

Central Elevated 1,065 Lower 0.2 

Total    0.7 

 

3.3 Distribution System 

The existing water distribution system was primary constructed since the 1970’s. The system 

consists of over 34 miles of watermain, varying in size from 4 to 16 inches in diameter as 



21 

shown on Figure 3-1 at the back of the report. The system also includes 1,150 valves, 515 fire 

hydrants, and 2,520 water meters. The existing system operates under two pressure districts, 

as shown on the map at the back of the report and discussed in the following paragraphs. 

 

Lower Pressure District 
The majority of the Village is in the low pressure district. The pressures in the low pressure 

district range from 40 to 100 psi and are controlled by the overflow elevation in both of the 

Village’s elevated storage towers. The topographical service elevation for the low pressure 

district ranges between 840 and 965 feet. 

 

High Pressure District 
The high pressure district was developed to supply water to the County Grounds, and is now 

servicing water to the recently completed St. Joseph’s Community Hospital in the Town of 

Polk. A booster station was constructed along CTH P in order to boost pressure to the high 

pressure district. A 2,000 hydro-pneumatic tank was installed on the corner of CTH P and the 

County Fair Grounds in order to maintain pressure in the high district when the booster pumps 

are not in operation. As the high pressure district continues to grow, the hydro-pneumatic 

tank will have to be replaced with a water storage facility. The high pressure booster station 

has a combination of booster pumps listed in Table 3-2. 

 

Table 3-2. Booster Station Pumps 

Pump 

Number 

Horsepower 

(hp) 

Total Dynamic 

Head (ft) 

Capacity (gpm) 

1 25 96 400 

2 25 100 600 

3 50 74 2100 

4 50 74 2100 

 

The firm capacity of the station is 3,100 gpm. The existing hydraulic grade line of the booster 

station is from 1,095 to 1,156, therefore the service range is from elevation 990 to 1,054. The 

booster station is equipped with a natural gas emergency stand-by generator in case of power 

failure. Currently, there is only one transmission main delivering water to the booster station. If 

this transmission main were to be taken out of service for maintenance or repair, there would 

not be water service to the high pressure district. 

 



22 

Water System Controls 
The distribution system controls are located in the water superintendent’s office inside Village 

Hall. The existing controls consist of a conventional telemetry control panel, allowing operators 

the ability to operate and control pumps, and monitor and trend elevated tank levels. Well 

pumps are automatically controlled by a pump selection matrix based on time of day and the 

water level in the elevated storage tanks. The elevated water tower in the business park serves 

as the primary control tower for the well pumps. 

 

Due to the increasing electrical costs the Village started imposing a time of day restriction on 

Well #4 to try and decrease the amount of electrical use during peak demand times. This 

resulted in the Village pumping more water from the other wells including Well #2. Since Well 

#2 produces less than 100 gpm, the cost to produce water from Well #2 is approximately 

double the cost to produce water from Well #4 during peak demand times. The combination 

of not pumping a large volume of water from Well #4 and the minimal amount of water 

pumped from Well #2 has increased the cost to produce water for the Village. A summary of 

the electrical and gas costs to operate all of the wells can be found in Appendix D.   

 

Operation and control of the high service booster pumps is controlled by the 2,000 gallon 

hydro-pneumatic tank on the County Fair Grounds. Additional high service pumps are 

operated based on water demand and decreasing water pressure in the high service area.  

 

3.4 Hydraulic Analysis 

Jackson's entire water supply and distribution system is modeled in detail using a computer 

model. The results of this model are discussed in more detail in the next section. The first step 

in the process is to create a computer model of the existing supply and distribution system. 

The purpose of this model is to find any problems with the existing system and to serve as a 

foundation for a model of the entire system.  

 

Jackson’s system was flow tested in various locations in the spring of 2006. The results of 

these flow tests are presented in Appendix A. The computer model is then run with the same 

conditions in an attempt to match the results. After several trials in which model characteristics 

are adjusted, it is possible to match the computed model results with the field test results. The 



23 

test results matched well in all the tests, indicating that the computer model accurately 

portrays Jackson’s system.  

 

3.5 Adequacy of Existing Facilities 

The existing water supply and distribution system for the Village of Jackson meets the various 

current water demands placed on it. Phased improvements in the supply, storage, and 

distribution facilities have proven to be cost-effective and timely. The existing wells have met 

current supply needs.  

 

Generally, the existing storage facilities provide satisfactory static and residual pressures to most 

areas. The existing distribution system consists generally of properly sized mains that are 

capable of conveying water and fire flows to the needed areas. Figure 3-3 shows the existing 

available fire flow in the Village. Fire flow analysis was conducted during maximum day 

demand, with the water level in the towers approximately 3 feet below overflow and no well 

pumps in operation. Modifications proposed to strengthen and expand the existing system are 

discussed in the following section. The following items were identified during the analysis as 

problem areas. 

 

 High Pressures. Some areas in the lower pressure district that have high pressures 

(greater than 90 psi). Again, these are primarily the result of low ground elevations. 

These areas are shown on the Future System Static Pressure Map. If there are any 

homes at an elevation lower than 845, the Village should consider installing individual 

pressure reducing valves at the meter to help reduce the system pressure in the interior 

plumbing. 

 Dead-ends. Currently there are three areas of the distribution system that operate as 

a long dead-end. The Twin Creeks and Sherman Park subdivisions located in the 

Southeastern area of the Village are not looped. To increase the water quality and 

reliability of the system the subdivisions should be connected through the proposed 

Palorama Farms development. Additionally, the existing 12-inch transmission main that 

is stubbed on the south side of the Sherman Creek should be connected through the 

proposed Dalman Village phase 2 development to the Twin Creeks subdivision. This 

will provide two 12-inch transmission mains a looped system to the southwest area of 

the Village. The high pressure district booster station is currently supplied water from a  



Ir
Io

A¡

Ib

?Ñ

PLEASANT VALLEY ROAD

JA
C

K
SO

N
 D

R
IV

E

SHERMAN ROAD

Map Document: (N:\841\84105119\Cad\GIS\mxd_projects\Fire Flow 11 x 17.mxd)
4/26/2006 -- EOJ

Legend
Village Limits

Pipes
4" Diameter Pipe

6" Diameter Pipe

8" Diameter Pipe

10" Diameter Pipe

12" Diameter Pipe

16" Diameter Pipe
p

0 2,000 4,0001,000
Feet

Fire Flow (gpm)
0 - 500

500 - 1000

1000 - 2000

2000 - 3500

3500 && above

Figure 3-3
Available Fire Flow



25 

long 16-inch transmission main in CTH P. A second feed to the booster station should be 

installed to improve the reliability of the booster station to supply water to St. Joseph’s 

Hospital.  

 

The following improvements are recommended based on the results of the hydraulic modeling 

of the existing system and discussions with Village Staff. 

 

• Watermain replacement program. The watermains in the Green Valley mobile home 

park are old and undersized. We recommend the Village replace the watermains in the 

park with a new 6-inch diameter main. The Village is also preparing to replace the entire 

watermain system in the Parkside subdivision in 2006 and 2007. This relay project will help 

increase the available fire flow in this area of the Village.  

 

• Railroad crossing. As part of the Parkside relay project, there is an existing 6-inch railroad 

crossing connecting Parkview Court with North Cedar Street. This railroad crossing can be 

eliminated since it will serve a very limited purpose under normal and emergency 

conditions. Supporting technical memorandum about abandoning this crossing can be 

found in Appendix A.  

 

• Well Replacement. The capacity of well 2 has continued to decrease over the years due 

to the amount of sand that is pumped when trying to operate at a higher rate. This well 

will eventually need to be rehabilitated or replaced. The Village should pursue converting 

the high capacity well in the Cranberry Creek development as a new municipal well. 

 

• Growth. As growth occurs in each of the water pressure districts, the water system needs 

to be expanded to handle that growth. The Future Water System Map at the back of the 

report shows the water system improvements required to meet the growth of the Village. 

The Capital Improvement Plan outlined later in this report shows the expected phasing of 

improvements. 

      



26 

CHAPTER 4 PROPOSED FACILITIES 

4.1 Supply-Storage Considerations 

Supply capacity, storage volume, and distribution system capacity are interrelated. Tanks act as 

additional supply sources during peak periods when the primary supply source is incapable of 

meeting the demand. Thus, the storage tends to stabilize the peaks in water demand and 

allows the system to produce water at a lower, more uniform rate. The distribution system 

must be capable of carrying the flows from both the supply sources and the tanks without 

allowing pressures to drop below approximately 40 psi or rise above 100 psi. Static pressure 

should be within a range of 50 to 90, if possible. During fires or other emergencies, a residual 

pressure of 20 psi must be maintained. The system must also be capable of conveying water 

from the supply source to the tanks for storage without allowing the development of high 

pumping heads and therefore high pressures in the system during low usage periods.  

 

There are an infinite number of combinations of supply and storage that can be used to meet 

peak water demands. An economical system can be obtained through an analysis of supply 

and storage costs.  

 

For the vast majority of communities, the ideal 

combination of supply and storage is found when 

the supply equals 100% of the maximum day 

demand. This is consistent with the 

recommendations in both the by Great Lakes 

Upper Mississippi River Board (Ten States 

Standards), and American Water Works Manual of 

Practice M32 - Distribution Network Analysis for 

Water Utilities. The Village of Jackson’s system 

capacity is established at 2.29 MGD which is 

100% of the maximum day demand for the 

projected population of 10,400 persons. 

 



27 

4.2 Hydraulic Analysis 

The Jackson water system was analyzed in detail using a hydraulic computer model, Infowater. 

The model describes the entire system, including wells, pumps, tanks, booster station, and 

distribution mains. The model was used to analyze the system for several static cases and 

through a time simulation during the design maximum demand day. The model incorporates 

the Hazen-Williams energy loss formula and the Hardy Cross procedure. The Hardy Cross 

procedure balances both flows and energy losses throughout the entire system. 

 

The time simulation analysis examines the system on an hourly basis over the entire maximum 

demand day, including peak demand periods, tank-filling conditions, and critical pressures. The 

analysis uses the maximum day demand curve based on the Village’s SCADA system output.. 

A peak hourly demand of two times the maximum day demand was used in the model. 

 

Input for the computer model includes pipe sizes and lengths, point supplies and demands, 

storage tank characteristics, pump performance curves, and ground elevations all entered in a 

GIS drawing. The model then computes data for various times of the day based on the 

demand curve. These data include pipe flows and velocities, energy losses, pressures at each 

demand point, pumping rates, and storage tank levels.  

 

Analysis of this data facilitates the design of an economical and adequate water system. 

Results of this analysis and recommendations for improvements are presented later in the 

report. 

 

4.3 Water Supply 

Wells Required 

The amount of reliable or firm water 

supply required for any municipal 

water system should be able to meet 

the maximum day pumpage with 

the largest well out of service, and 

there is adequate storage in the 

distribution system. If both criteria 



28 

are met, the water supply will be able to replenish the water in the storage facilities during off-

peak hours. While the water used to meet peak hour demand will be supplied by the available 

storage volume in the storage facilities. Providing a production capacity equal to the maximum 

day demand will result in improved system reliability by enhancing performance during the 

tank-filling periods, and particularly in the event of an emergency such as a fire. 

 

The Village’s current firm water supply capacity is 1.95 MGD but is anticipated to increase with 

the addition of Well #5 to 3.39 MGD. A total production capacity of 2.29 MGD (1,590 gpm) is 

required to meet the demand conditions in the Village for the study limits. This represents 

100% of the system’s maximum day demand for the study limits. Figure 4-1 compares the 

historical and projected water supply capacities with the historical and projected maximum day 

water supply needs. As illustrated in Figure 4-1 he Village will have an adequate supply of 

water to meet the existing and projected maximum day demand needs.  

 

 

Figure 4-1
Projected Max. Day vs. Supply Capacity

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

5.0

5.5

6.0

96 97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

Year

Su
p

p
ly

 C
ap

ac
it

y 
an

d
 P

u
m

p
ag

e 
(M

G
D

)

H istorical 
Max. Day

Projected 
Max. Day

Firm Supply Capacity

Total Supply Capacity



29 

4.4 Storage 

Water storage facilities serve a variety of needs for any distribution system including: 

 Establish and maintain water system pressure 

 Provide water for fire protection 
 Meet the fluctuations water demands in the system 

 Provide operational flexibility for water supply facilities 

 Improve water supply reliability 

 

Figure 4-2 illustrates the general characterizes for an elevated water storage facility. The 

operating range is the range that water level will fluctuate between in daily operation to meet 

system demands. Below the operating range is the volume for fire flow and emergency 

conditions. The additional storage is to help maintain minimum pressure in the distribution 

system. Storage facilities should be designed to meet the maximum day demands of the 

customers while also providing an adequate amount of water for fire protection. 

 

 
 

 

The following criteria were used to develop a relationship between supply capacity and the 

optimum amount of storage volumes for the Village of Jackson. 

 Firm supply capacity should be able to meet projected maximum day demands 

Figure 4-2 - Tank Storage Volumes 



30 

 Total available storage should be able to meet fire flow needs with a firm supply 

capacity that meets maximum day demands. The base fire flow need is 3,500gpm for a 

duration of 3 hours 

 

The amount of storage required for Jackson's water system is related to the available supply 

capacity. As the supply capacity is increased, the amount of storage required in the distribution 

system is decreased. The relationship between the firm supply capacity and usable storage can 

be seen in Figure 4-3.The optimum amount of water storage required was determined based 

on the firm water supply capacity of 1,844 gpm and a required fire flow of 3,500 gpm for 3 

hours. 

 

A point of the graph is plotted that represents the existing supply (1,844 gpm) and storage 

(0.7MG) capacities. This point should fall on or above the supply-storage curves for the existing 

and future systems. The graph shows the Village will be operating above the existing supply-

storage curve once Well 5 is in operation. However, the existing supply-storage capacities will 

need to be increased to meet the future supply-storage curve. Since the firm capacity of the 

water supply is greater than the future maximum day demand, increasing the capacity of the 

Village’s water storage facilities would be required.  



31 

Figure 4-3
Combined  S upply  &  S torage Needs
3,500 gpm - F ire  P rotection Capacity

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000

Available  S torage  Capacity  (MG)

R
el

ia
bl

e 
 O

pe
ra

tio
n 

 S
up

pl
y 

 C
ap

ac
ity

  (
gp

m
)

Current Capacity
P roposed Capacity (tank)
P roposed Capacity (well)

2025 Need

Ex . Conditions

 
 

Increasing the storage capacity by approximately 600,000 gallons will help meet the future 

requirements of the Village. Another option would be to increase the reliable water supply in 

the Village. Converting the old Cranberry Creek well to replace the existing well 2 will increase 

the reliable pumping capacity approximately 700 gpm, and allow the Village to meet the future 

water needs. 



32 

The existing and proposed storage sites for the Jackson water distribution system are shown 

on Figure 4-4. A total of 1.3 million gallons (MG) of storage at 4 sites is planned. The future 

storage capacity is higher than the typical design of about 30 percent of the future maximum 

day demand for the following reasons.  

 

 To maintain pressures – the variation in ground elevation limits the effective storage in 

each tank. 

 Redundancy – high pressure district does not have a back-up source of water.  
 Operational Control – The high pressure district currently has virtually no storage 

capacity only enough to maintain system pressure. As the high pressure district grows 

the need for an additional storage facility will increase in order to properly operate the 

booster pumps.  

  

The proposed elevated water storage tanks have been located to take advantage of high 

ground, thus minimizing construction costs. They are also located at points within the 

distribution system which complement the primary supply points and thereby maintain more 

constant water pressure during peak demand periods. 

 

Table 4-1 shows the proposed storage facilities. The following paragraphs discuss some of 

these facilities in greater detail.  

 

Table 4-1 Proposed Storage Facilities 

Storage Location Type of 

Storage Facility 

HWL Total Storage 

(MG) 

Service District 

Business Park (tank 2) Elevated 1,065 0.5 Low 

Low District (tank 1) Elevated 1,065 0.2 Low 

Sherman Road Elevated 1,065 0.3 Low 

Pleasant Valley Rd.  Elevated 1,140 0.3 High 

Total   1.3  

 

4.5 Distribution System 

General 
The proposed distribution system for the Village of Jackson is presented on Figure 4-4. There 

are five water supply sites in the proposed system and four elevated water storage facilities. A 

strong network of transmission water mains extend in every direction from these sites. Major  



Ir

Io

A¡

Ib

?Ñ

k9

k9

k9

k9

k9

"5

"5
"5

"5

"5

"5

"5
"5

Ja
ck

so
n 

D
riv

e

Pleasant Valley Road

Pleasant Valley Road

0 1,000 2,000 3,000500
Feet

Map Document: (N:\841\84105119\Cad\GIS\mxd_projects\Future Build-Out Distribution System 22 x 34.mxd)
10/10/2006 -- EOJ

Figure 4-4
Proposed Distribution System

Legend

"5 Pumps

Village Limits

Study Limits

k9 Tanks

Pipes
4" Diameter Pipe

6" Diameter Pipe

6" Diameter Pipe

8" Diameter Pipe

10" Diameter Pipe

12" Diameter Pipe

16" Diameter Pipe

PROPOSED
    WELL #6

Future Tank

Future Tank



34 

water mains connect the storage tanks and the supply sources and are looped throughout the 

system in order to provide reliable service. 

 

The Village's topography ranges from elevation 830 to elevation 1040. The distribution system 

has been divided into two pressure districts, to provide a static pressure range of 35 psi to over 

95 psi (pounds per square inch). Static pressure is defined as the pressure available at the street 

when all the tanks are full and no one is using water. The proposed high pressure district 

boundary can be seen in Figure 4-4. The boundary line was determined based on a 125 foot 

service range for both zones and an overlapping static pressure range of approximately 20 psi. 

The low pressure district will serve an elevation range between 830 and 955 and the high 

pressure district will serve an elevation range between 915 and 1040. Figure 4-5 illustrates the 

static pressures for the future distribution system. 

 

Static pressures within the system, as measured at street level, are satisfactory if they are 

maintained between 40 psi and 90 psi. Under peak demand conditions, it is desirable to 

maintain residual pressures above 30 psi. Under emergency conditions, pressures must be 

maintained above 20 psi. In some instances, static and residual pressures may exceed 90 psi 

where an area is at low ground elevations. All homes with a static pressure of greater than 80 

psi may want to have individual pressure reducing valves installed in the homes. Homes with 

static pressures below 40 psi should have in-home pressure booster stations. 

 

Hydraulic Analysis 

The computer analysis described previously was used to design and analyze the ultimate water 

system during the maximum day. The future system shown on Figure 4-4 was evaluated on 

the following parameters. 

 
 Tank Operation:  The water level in a tank should ‘bounce’ during the day to 

maintain a fresh source of water in the tank, but the tank should not empty during the 

maximum day to provide a safety factor in an emergency. The analysis verifies 

minimum level, ending level, and total operation time for each tank.  

 

 Pump Operation:  The water supply well pumps should operate as close to optimum 

as possible through the maximum day. 



Ir
Io

A¡

Ib

?Ñ

PLEASANT VALLEY ROAD

JA
C

K
SO

N
 D

R
IV

E

SHERMAN ROAD

Map Document: (N:\841\84105119\Cad\GIS\mxd_projects\Static Pressure 11 x 17.mxd)
4/26/2006 -- eoj

Legend
Village Limits

Pipes
4" Diameter Pipe

6" Diameter Pipe

8" Diameter Pipe

10" Diameter Pipe

12" Diameter Pipe

16" Diameter Pipe
p

0 2,000 4,0001,000
Feet

Static Pressure (psi)
 30 - 40

 40 - 50

 50 - 60

 60 - 70

 70 - 80

 80 - 90

 90 - 100

Pressure District Boundary

Figure 4-5
Future Static Pressure



36 

 
 High Pressure Areas:  Areas at low ground elevations are susceptible to high pressure 

problems. As the Static Water Pressure Map at the back of the report shows, there are 

several areas with high static pressures. In-home pressure reducing valves are desirable 

anytime the static pressure is above 80 psi. High pressures can also occur during low 

demand periods due to excessive headloss in pipes used to fill tanks. None of 

Jackson’s high pressures are due to tank filling conditions. 

 

 Fire Flows: The Insurance Services Office (ISO) recommended fire flows are shown in 

Table 5. All areas outside the urban service area are designed for 3,500 gpm (gallons 

per minute) since it is not possible to determine the exact location of single family 

residential at this time. Figure 4-6 shows the fire flow for the future service area. All 

areas will meet or exceed the recommended fire flows while maintaining 20 psi residual 

pressure. 

 

 Railroad Crossings:  The existing 6-inch railroad crossing into the Parkside subdivision 

was abandoned as part of the future service area hydraulic analysis. The existing 16-

inch crossing into the planned Laurel Springs subdivision should be extended to 

Jackson Drive to serve as transmission main to any new development in the 

Northeastern zone of the service area. The existing 12-inch crossing south of Highway 

60 should also be extended to the 12-inch main in Jackson Drive. 

4.6 Water System Phasing 

The projected served population of Jackson in the year 2025 is approximately 10,400. Based on 

the projected population growth, additions to the supply, and storage facilities were estimated 

until the year 2025 and are presented in Table 4-2. These additions will keep pace with the 

increasing needs of the community and at the same time maintain a desirable balance 

between storage and supply for economy and reliability. If growth rates deviate from the 

Village’s forecasts, if a major water consumer is added to the system, or conservation measures 

produce a result different than anticipated, the phasing schedule of Table 4-2 should be 

revised in accordance with the latest available data. The data presented in Table 4-2 is based 

on the assumption the new well#6 will provide an 800 gpm supply and the required storage is 

will provide enough emergency water storage for a 3 hour fire duration at 3,500 gpm. 



37 

Table 4-2  Water Supply / Storage Phasing 

Max. Day Demand Supply Storage 

Year 

Served 

Population (gpm) (MGD) 

Required 

(gpm) 

Available 

(1) (gpm) 

Required 

(MG) 

Available 

(MG) Comments 

2005 5,884 838 1.21 838 844 0.5 0.7   

2006 6,491 933 1.34 933 1844 0.55 0.7   

2007 7,098 1,030 1.48 1,030 1844 0.6 0.7   

2008 7,706 1,129 1.63 1,129 2544 0.65 0.7 cranberry well conversion 

2009 8,313 1,230 1.77 1,230 2544 0.7 1 add 3rd tower to low zone 

2010 8,920 1,332 1.92 1,332 2544 0.8 1.3 add tower to north zone 

2015 9,872 1,508 2.17 1,508 2544 0.95 1.3   

2020 10,000 1,528 2.20 1,528 2544 1 1.3   

2025 10,400 1,589 2.29 1,589 2544 1.1 1.3   

         

(1) well pump capacities have a duty rating of 80% 



Ir
Io

A¡

Ib

?Ñ

PLEASANT VALLEY ROAD

JA
C

K
SO

N
 D

R
IV

E

SHERMAN ROAD

Figure 4-6
Future Available Fire Flow

Map Document: (N:\841\84105119\Cad\GIS\mxd_projects\Static Pressure 8-5 x 11.mxd)
4/24/2006 -- EOJ

Legend
Pipes

4" Diameter Pipe

6" Diameter Pipe

8" Diameter Pipe

10" Diameter Pipe

12" Diameter Pipe

16" Diameter Pipe

Village Limits

p

1000

1000 - 1500

1500 - 2000

2000 - 2500

2500 - 3000

3000 - 3500

3500 - 4000



39 

CHAPTER 5- CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLANNING 

 

Based on the planned developments within the Village limits and the projected growth of the 

service area, the water system will require improvements to accommodate the future water 

needs. The recommended improvements are presented in this chapter in a Capital 

Improvement Plan (CIP) for the Village. The CIP prioritizes system improvements and provides a 

schedule for the timing of project construction. Each proposed improvement also contains a 

budget cost estimate for the improvement. 

5.1 Supply Improvements 

The current reliable pumping capacity of the Village’s supply system in 1844gpm, well above 

the system’s current maximum day demand need of 840 gpm. However Well #2 in the Village 

only produces 70 gpm of water and has an average operating cost of approximately double 

that of the other Village wells. We recommend abandoning Well #2 and converting the old 

Cranberry Creek well to a municipal well capable of producing 700 gpm of water. The 

converted well will provide the Village with an increased supply of water capable of meeting 

the long term needs of the Village.  

5.2 Storage Improvements 

Recommended storage volumes in the system over the planning period are dependent of the 

future status of the high pressure zone, conversion of the Cranberry Creek well, and the peak 

hour demand in the distribution system. Currently there is no water storage in the high 

pressure zone for the Hospital and the County Fair grounds. As the distribution system 

expands in the high pressure zone, and the water demand increase to over 200 gpm, a water 

storage facility will be required. The 200 gpm threshold was set in the conditional approval 

letter from the DNR in 2000, when the high pressure booster station was constructed. A copy 

of the approval letter is in Appendix A.  The Village has identified an area just north of Pleasant 

Valley Road as the site of the new storage facility. The timing of the new storage facility will 

greatly depend on the development along HWY 45, however, we recommend the Village 

secure the land for a new facility in 2007 in anticipation of constructing a new facility in 2010.  



40 

5.3 Distribution Improvements 

Figure 5-1 is the proposed Village of Jackson Water Utility master plan for the Year 2025. The 

figure illustrates the recommend improvements to the existing distribution system, and the 

transmission main improvements to serve the planned developments within the service area. 

The improvements have been recommended to strengthen the transmission main system, 

develop a second feed to the high pressure zone, and to allow expansion of the distribution 

system into future service areas.  

5.4 Capital Improvement Plan 

The proposed CIP is presented in Table 5-1. The plan presents budget costs estimates and a 

proposed timeframe of the recommended improvements over the planning period.   

 

TABLE - 5-1 

RECOMMENDED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN 

Village of Jackson 

  

Project Cost Estimate 

Existing Distribution System - relay projects   

S. Center Street (Main St to Reynolds) $480,000 

Parkside Subdivision/ Jackson Drive $1,900,000 

Green Valley I (last phase) $520,000 
    

Proposed Development Projects - system expansion   

Water/Sewer Main - Sherman Rd (Glen Brooke Dr to Well 4)  $500,000 

TIF Projects $1,600,000 

Water main under tracks Cedar Creek Road (Laurel Springs) $200,000 

Water main under tracks at Prange's Property $130,000 

Aurora Water Main Loop across CTH "P" $450,000 

Water main on Sherman (Dallmann Village Phase 2) Developer's expense 

  



41 

Project Cost Estimate 

Supply Improvements   

Well #6 $450,000 
    

Storage Improvements   

High Pressure Storage Tower $400,000 

Low Pressure Storage Tower $400,000 

 

 

 

 



Ir

Io

A¡

Ib

?Ñ

$V

$V

"5

"5

PLEASANT VALLEY ROAD

JA
C

K
SO

N
 D

R
IV

E

SHERMAN ROAD

Map Document: (N:\841\84105119\Cad\GIS\mxd_projects\Future Fire Flow 11 x 17.mxd)
4/26/2006 -- EOJ

Legend
Village Limits

Pressure District Boundary

$V Tank

"5 Pump

Service Area 2025

Service Area 2010

Service Area 2005

DIAMETER
16" Diameter

12" Diameter

8" Diameter

6" Diameter

p
0 2,000 4,0001,000

Feet

Figure 5-1
Proposed Improvement Projects

C

A

E

H
B

D

K

G
I

M

L

J

F



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A 



TO:   TSN  

DATE:  March 15, 2006 

FROM:  MWP 

RE:  RR crossings 

 
Summary and Conclusion: 
The 6” water main connecting Parkview Court and North Center Street adds little value to the water 
system under either normal or emergency conditions.  Investment in a replacement is not advisable.  This 
main can be abandoned in the future without significant negative effects.  The pipes loss only appeared 
significant when combined with the additional loss of the railroad crossings located to its north and south. 
This combined loss would produce significant effects, but the resulting conditions would remain far in 
excess of the critical needs. 
  
Background: 
The existing water main in the subdivision containing Parkview Court is all 6” iron main.  Near-term plans 
call for the replacement of the main in this subdivision.  The existing water main linking Parkview Court 
with North Center Street is also 6” diameter iron pipe and crosses a railroad right-of-way that runs north-
south.   The value of this pipe link to North Center Street was studied to determine the value and 
importance of including it as part of the area main replacement plan.  Water main connections across the 
railroad right-of-way are sparse, making each crossing more critical than a similar pipe would be 
otherwise.  For this reason, the simultaneous loss of the water main crossing to the north and south of 
this location was also considered. 
 
Analysis: 
The Village of Jackson computer model was configured to simulate performance of the water system 
under different scenarios in order to determine value of the pipe link with North Center Street.  All 
simulations assumed the other main in the subdivision in question had been replaced with new 8” PVC 
pipe.  Operation under non-emergency demands produced no noticeable effects and therefore only the 
effects on emergency fire flow capacity is reported. 
 
All hydrants in the subdivision were examined to determine how high a flow rate would be available under 
demanding water use conditions.  The hydrants on adjacent portions of Jackson Drive were also 
evaluated, but were dropped from the reported results, as these results were substantially less significant. 
 
Results: 
Demand Conditions:  Maximum Annual Day demand – Maximum Demand Hour Average  
 

SIMULATION CONDITIONS Range of Critical Fire 
Flows within 
subdivision  

Existing 6” main in service 2400-3900 gpm 
Existing 6” main out of service 2300-3400 gpm  
Combination- 6” main & RR crossing South out of service 1800-2400 gpm 
Combination- 6” main & RR crossing North out of service 1800-2400 gpm 

 
 

Mequon Office 
12075 N. Corporate Parkway 

Suite 200 
Mequon, Wisconsin  53092 

Phone:  (262) 241-4466 
FAX:  (262) 241-4901 



















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B 



Ir
Io

A¡

Ib

?Ñ

PLEASANT VALLEY ROAD

JA
C

K
SO

N
 D

R
IV

E

SHERMAN ROAD

2010 Pop: 7
2020 Pop: 7
2025 Pop: 7

2010 Pop: 8
2020 Pop: 8
2025 Pop: 8

2010 Pop: 3
2020 Pop: 3
2025 Pop: 3

2010 Pop: 4
2020 Pop: 4
2025 Pop: 4

2010 Pop: 2
2020 Pop: 2
2025 Pop: 2

2010 Pop: 18
2020 Pop: 18
2025 Pop: 18

2010 Pop: 10
2020 Pop: 10
2025 Pop: 10

2010 Pop: 10
2020 Pop: 10
2025 Pop: 10

2010 Pop: 16
2020 Pop: 16
2025 Pop: 16

2010 Pop: 17
2020 Pop: 17
2025 Pop: 17

2010 Pop: 20
2020 Pop: 20
2025 Pop: 20

2010 Pop: 17
2020 Pop: 17
2025 Pop: 17

2010 Pop: 30
2020 Pop: 30
2025 Pop: 30

2010 Pop: 13
2020 Pop: 13
2025 Pop: 13

2010 Pop: 123
2020 Pop: 185
2025 Pop: 216

2010 Pop: 107
2020 Pop: 133
2025 Pop: 146

2010 Pop: 4
2020 Pop: 4
2025 Pop: 4

2010 Pop: 6
2020 Pop: 6
2025 Pop: 6

2010 Pop: 0
2020 Pop: 0
2025 Pop: 0

2010 Pop: 9
2020 Pop: 9
2025 Pop: 9

2010 Pop: 10
2020 Pop: 10
2025 Pop: 10

2010 Pop: 12
2020 Pop: 12
2025 Pop: 12

2010 Pop: 15
2020 Pop: 15
2025 Pop: 15

2010 Pop: 37
2020 Pop: 39
2025 Pop: 40

2010 Pop: 38
2020 Pop: 38
2025 Pop: 38

2010 Pop: 24
2020 Pop: 24
2025 Pop: 24

2010 Pop: 34
2020 Pop: 34
2025 Pop: 34

2010 Pop: 45
2020 Pop: 61
2025 Pop: 69

2010 Pop: 8
2020 Pop: 8
2025 Pop: 8

2010 Pop: 37
2020 Pop: 69
2025 Pop: 85

2010 Pop: 8
2020 Pop: 8
2025 Pop: 8

2010 Pop: 0
2020 Pop: 0
2025 Pop: 0

2010 Pop: 0
2020 Pop: 0
2025 Pop: 0

2010 Pop: 115
2020 Pop: 195
2025 Pop: 235

2010 Pop: 180
2020 Pop: 218
2025 Pop: 237

2010 Pop: 184
2020 Pop: 182
2025 Pop: 181

2010 Pop: 158
2020 Pop: 306
2025 Pop: 380

2010 Pop: 433
2020 Pop: 423
2025 Pop: 418

2010 Pop: 230
2020 Pop: 286
2025 Pop: 314

2010 Pop: 79
2020 Pop: 139
2025 Pop: 169

2010 Pop: 851
2020 Pop: 913
2025 Pop: 944

2010 Pop: 184
2020 Pop: 310
2025 Pop: 373

2010 Pop: 169
2020 Pop: 169
2025 Pop: 169

2010 Pop: 227
2020 Pop: 443
2025 Pop: 551

2010 Pop: 307
2020 Pop: 365
2025 Pop: 394

2010 Pop: 104
2020 Pop: 122
2025 Pop: 131

2010 Pop: 558
2020 Pop: 626
2025 Pop: 660

2010 Pop: 704
2020 Pop: 686
2025 Pop: 677

2010 Pop: 122
2020 Pop: 140
2025 Pop: 149

2010 Pop: 49
2020 Pop: 89
2025 Pop: 109

2010 Pop: 8
2020 Pop: 8
2025 Pop: 8

2010 Pop: 31
2020 Pop: 31
2025 Pop: 31

2010 Pop: 816
2020 Pop: 1010
2025 Pop: 1107

2010 Pop: 1378
2020 Pop: 1564
2025 Pop: 1657

2010 Pop: 10
2020 Pop: 10
2025 Pop: 10

2010 Pop: 17
2020 Pop: 27
2025 Pop: 32

Figure B-1
2010, 2020 & 2025 Population Projections

Map Document: (N:\841\84105119\Cad\GIS\mxd_projects\Population Projections 8-5 x 11.mxd)
4/24/2006 -- 4:54:49 PM

Legend
Village Limits

Study Limits p

0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Source: Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX C 



Commercial
Govern-
mental Industrial Residential

Accounted 
for losses

Un-
accounted 

for
1998 25.7 2.2 51.4 91 16.66 4.5 170.19 180.06 94.52%
1999 25.9 6.4 50.5 92 13.49 2.8 174.80 182.99 95.52%
2000 31.3 2.3 40.7 96 15.37 3.6 170.38 180.49 94.40%
2001 30.1 2.2 39.7 100 13.07 8.5 171.52 184.61 92.91%
2002 33.7 1.8 33.5 111 15.39 15.2 180.09 200.63 89.76%
2003 37.2 2.8 30.2 115 12.77 27.1 184.81 278.25 66.42%
2004 35.0 1.9 26.3 110 10.99 27.8 173.53 216.06 80.32%

Total 218.8 19.6 272.4 715 97.74 89.51 1,412.56 1,423.07 99.26%

WATER CONSUMPTION 1998-2004
VILLAGE OF JACKSON

Table C-1

Year

Annual Water Sales

Total Sales
Total 

Pumped
%Pumpage 

Metered

Figure C-1
Water Sales by Customer Categories

0

25

50

75

100

125

150

175

200

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Year

A
nn

ua
l S

al
es

 (M
G

Y)

Residential Industrial Commercial Governmental



Figure C-2
Water Pumped

1995-2004

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

26

28

30

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

MONTH

PU
M

PA
G

E 
(M

G
)

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004



Jan 13.78 12.83 13.986 13.556 14.468 18.485 23.724
Feb 11.651 11.512 13.481 14.221 12.446 17.092 21.928
Mar 12.306 13.559 14.705 14.111 13.908 19.881 15.806
Apr 13.494 14.193 16.196 15.078 15.384 21.444 16.079
May 14.151 14.977 14.665 15.668 15.998 21.898 15.054
Jun 16.262 17.023 16.104 16.924 17.741 25.815 16.227
Jul 20.899 19.66 18.882 18.672 23.753 30.307 19.741
Aug 18.807 17.284 16.95 18.32 20.962 29.138 18.962
Sep 17.101 17.412 14.089 16.227 16.91 26.179 19.029
Oct 14.936 16.3 15.209 14.778 16.772 24.124 18.089
Nov 13.182 14.2 12.711 14.006 15.108 21.308 15.371
Dec 13.487 14.037 13.507 13.052 17.18 22.575 16.045

Total 180.056 182.987 180.485 184.613 200.63 278.246 216.055

Max. Month 
(MGD) 0.674 0.634 0.609 0.602 0.766 0.978 0.765
Min. Month 
(MGD) 0.397 0.411 0.424 0.421 0.445 0.610 0.486
Max day 
(MGD) 0.946 0.880 0.986 0.927 1.158 1.353 0.951
Max day 
(date) 27-Jul 8-Jul 20-Jul 7-Aug 1-Jul 14-Jul 7-Feb
Avg. day 
(MGD) 0.493 0.501 0.493 0.506 0.550 0.762 0.590
Max day/ 
avg day 1.918 0.501 0.493 0.506 0.550 0.762 0.590
Max month/ 
avg day 0.805 0.820 0.859 0.832 0.809 0.801 0.823

Watermain break that started in December of 2002 and wasn't found and repaired until February
of 2004.

2003 2004Month

Table C-2
Pumping and Demand Variations 

Village of Jackson 

Million Gallons Pumped

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002



Residential Total Max. Day
1998 4,496 55.37 109.72 210.41

1999 4,747 53.05 105.61 185.38
2000 4,998 52.67 98.94 197.28
2001 5,175 52.69 97.73 179.12
2002 5,352 56.71 102.70 216.35
2003 5,530 56.83 137.86 244.68
2004 5,707 52.99 103.72 166.64

AVG. 54.33 108.04 199.98

Table C-3
Per Capita Water Demand

Village of Jackson 

Year
Estimated 
Population

gpd/cap



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX D 



Well #1 Well #2 Well #3 Well #4 1998 Total Gal Well #1 Well #2 Well #3 Well #4 1999 Total Gal

3182 691 9906 Jan 13779 3315 810 4708 5152 Jan 13985
4712 1931 5007 Feb 11650 3192 534 5639 4115 Feb 13480
2805 3841 5659 Mar 12305 3687 670 7242 3105 Mar 14704
3701 3741 6051 Apr 13493 3767 889 8024 3514 Apr 16194
4096 3701 6871 May 14668 4329 625 7151 2558 May 14663
4905 3697 7659 Jun 16261 3551 705 8352 3494 Jun 16102
4035 3808 10313 2741 Jul 20897 4302 852 9849 3878 Jul 18881
2877 3796 5949 6182 Aug 18804 3703 707 8795 3744 Aug 16949
2381 3575 7599 3545 Sep 17100 4225 501 6534 2827 Sep 14087
2487 3587 5715 3146 Oct 14935 4600 492 5881 4235 Oct 15208
2132 3480 5013 2556 Nov 13181 3196 252 6656 2605 Nov 12709
3025 2566 5646 2248 Dec 13485 3399 485 7125 2497 Dec 13506

Total 40338 38414 81388 20418 180558 Total 45266 7522 85956 41724 180468

Well #1 Well #2 Well #3 Well #4 2000 Total Gal Well #1 Well #2 Well #3 Well #4 2001 Total Gal

3031 665 6442 2690 Jan 12828 4087 530 6007 2643 Jan 13267
3620 934 2055 4904 Feb 11513 3109 403 5473 2531 Feb 11516
3936 996 3665 4961 Mar 13558 3740 572 6546 2371 Mar 13229
2742 2605 6231 2613 Apr 14191 2966 549 7115 3273 Apr 13903
2542 3631 6461 2341 May 14975 1802 617 8799 3511 May 14729
3321 3365 7914 2422 Jun 17022 1018 3985 7883 3985 Jun 16871
3151 3439 9341 3728 Jul 19659 4651 1028 10777 4177 Jul 20633

549 116 10674 5944 Aug 17283 5988 992 9983 3546 Aug 20509
10600 6811 Sep 17411 5206 679 7422 2904 Sep 16211
9281 7019 Oct 16300 3642 487 7162 5206 Oct 16497

919 413 7523 5344 Nov 14199 5022 537 5475 2980 Nov 14014
2176 1018 7952 2889 Dec 14035 3840 508 6445 3271 Dec 14064

Total 25987 17182 88139 51666 182974 Total 45071 10887 89087 40398 185443

Well #1 Well #2 Well #3 Well #4 2002 Total Gal Well #1 Well #2 Well #3 Well #4 2003 Total Gal

2065 326 6647 5430 Jan 14468 5302 896 5832 6455 Jan 18485
2659 612 4854 4321 Feb 12446 4931 836 5077 6248 Feb 17092
3834 842 5370 3862 Mar 13908 5713 955 5965 7248 Mar 19881
4170 943 5042 5229 Apr 15384 5803 1032 5915 8694 Apr 21444
4230 1095 5925 4748 May 15998 6350 1043 6879 7626 May 21898
4567 1253 7043 4878 Jun 17741 7488 1254 8115 8958 Jun 25815
5758 1429 9741 6825 Jul 23753 7552 1437 9300 12018 Jul 30307
3788 837 7532 8805 Aug 20962 8427 1425 9056 10230 Aug 29138
4161 717 4950 7082 Sep 16910 7329 1235 8366 9249 Sep 26179
4859 840 4165 6908 Oct 16772 5689 956 6852 10627 Oct 24124
1149 892 4802 8265 Nov 15108 5384 813 7114 7997 Nov 21308
3021 1011 7297 5851 Dec 17180 5631 931 6981 9032 Dec 22575

Total 44261 10797 73368 72204 200630 Total 75599 12813 85452 104382 278246

Well #1 Well #2 Well #3 Well #4 2004 Total Gal Well #1 Well #2 Well #3 Well #4 2005 Total Gal

5906 992 7673 9153 Jan 23724 4055 652 4749 6629 Jan 16085
4175 842 6629 10282 Feb 21928 3529 499 4257 5239 Feb 13524
4154 670 4984 5998 Mar 15806 4085 659 5065 5210 Mar 15019
4008 649 4225 7151 Apr 16033 4770 531 6280 5259 Apr 16840
3801 658 4594 6001 May 15054 5372 804 8855 2243 May 17274
4023 697 5010 6497 Jun 16227 6529 1018 9112 8001 Jun 24660
5015 843 6259 7624 Jul 19741 5437 824 6822 10017 Jul 23100
4797 788 5757 7620 Aug 18962 6012 1121 8161 8696 Aug 23990
4814 798 5958 7459 Sep 19029 11013 1482 9418 0 Sep 21913
4538 775 4872 7904 Oct 18089 7823 662 4851 6319 Oct 19655
3574 680 4139 6978 Nov 15371 7413 698 3364 4564 Nov 16039
4293 702 5353 5697 Dec 16045 3233 785 4546 6552 Dec 15116

Total 53098 9094 65453 88364 216009 Total 69271 9735 75480 68729 223215
* all totals are x 1000 Gallons

Table D-1 Pumpage records 1998 to 2005 per well per month



Table D-1 
Annual Well Production 

Center Street Well 1

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Year

Pu
m

pa
ge

 (M
G

/Y
R

)

Main Street Well 2

0

10

20

30

40

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Year

P
um

pa
ge

 (M
G

/Y
R

)

Highland Drive Well 3

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Year

Pu
m

pa
ge

 (M
G

/Y
R

)

Cedar Parkway Well 4

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Year

Pu
m

pa
ge

 (M
G

/Y
R

)

 



2006.08.01

Bonestroo, Rosene, Anderlik & Assoc.

Facility U
se

 T
yp

e

E
le

ct
ric

ity
 o

r G
as

S
ta

rt 
- A

ct
. O

r E
st

.

S
ta

rt 
D

at
e

 S
ta

rt 
R

ea
di

ng
 

E
nd

 - 
A

ct
. O

r E
st

.

E
nd

 D
at

e

 E
nd

 R
ea

di
ng

 

 k
W

h 
C

on
s.

 o
r k

W
 D

em
an

d 

 T
he

rm
s 

(a
dj

.) 

B
as

e 
C

ha
rg

es

U
sa

ge
 C

ha
rg

es

To
ta

l C
ha

rg
es

 - (
an

d 
%

 o
f 

E
le

c.
)

 1
00

0 
ga

ls
. P

um
pe

d 

El
ec

tr
ic

 U
sa

ge
 $

 c
os

t /
 

10
00

 g
al

s.

Total $/1000

Well 1 Total E a 12/17/2004 58,085      e 1/20/2005 66,161      8,076         26.42$     675.56$     701.98$               
Well 1 Total G a 12/1672004 1,315        a 1/19/2005 1,381        76          15.00$     66.84$       81.84$                 

Well 1 Total E e 1/20/2005 66,161      a 2/18/2005 69,158      2,997         26.42$     200.70$     227.12$               
Well 1 Total G a 1/19/2005 1,381        a 2/17/2005 1,424        . 50          15.00$     42.65$       57.65$                 

      3,915.0 $0.05 $0.07

Well 1 Total E a 2/18/2005 69,158      e 3/21/2005 75,719      6,561         26.42$     551.65$     578.07$               
Well 1 Total G a 2/17/2005 1,424        a 3/18/2005 1,469        51          15.00$     42.60$       57.60$                 

7,738.0     $0.11 $0.13
Well 1 Total E e 3/21/2005 75,719      a 4/18/2005 79,535      3,816         26.42$     336.19$     362.61$               
Well 1 Total G a 3/18/2005 1,469        a 4/19/2005 1,489        . 22          15.00$     19.33$       34.33$                 

Well 1 Total E a 4/18/2005 79,535      e 5/19/2005 85,354      5,819         26.42$     512.65$     539.07$               
Well 1 Total G a 4/19/2005 1,489        a 5/20/2005 1,504        17          15.00$     14.48$       29.48$                 

11,392.0   $0.11 $0.12
Well 1 Total E e 5/19/2005 85,354      a 6/16/2005 93,878      8,524         26.42$     772.35$     798.77$               
Well 1 Total G a 5/20/2005 1,504        a 6/19/2005 1,504        . -         15.00$     -$          15.00$                 

Well 1 Total E a 6/16/2005 93,878      e 7/20/2005 106,511    12,633       27.35$     1,144.68$  1,172.03$            
Well 1 Total G a 6/19/2005 1,504        e 7/19/2005 1,510        7            15.00$     5.46$         20.46$                 

11,679.0   $0.12 $0.13
Well 1 Total E e 7/20/2005 6,511        a 8/18/2005 9,467        2,956         27.35$     267.85$     295.20$               
Well 1 Total G a 7/19/2005 1,510        a 8/17/2005 1,512        . 2            15.00$     1.65$         16.65$                 

Well 1 Total E a 8/18/2005 9,467        e 9/19/2005 16,303      6,836         27.35$     619.41$     646.76$               
Well 1 Total G a 8/17/2005 1,512        a 9/16/2005 1,516        4            15.00$     3.78$         18.78$                 

17,524.0   $0.11 $0.11
Well 1 Total E e 9/19/2005 16,303      a 10/14/2005 30,563      14,260       27.35$     1,292.10$  1,319.45$            
Well 1 Total G a 9/16/2005 1,516        a 10/17/2005 1,513        . -         15.00$     (2.73)$       12.27$                 

Well 1 Total E a 10/14/2005 30,563      e 11/16/2005 37,765      7,202         27.35$     652.57$     679.92$               
Well 1 Total G a 10/17/2005 1,513        a 11/15/2005 1,513        -         15.00$     -$          15.00$                 

14,353.0   $0.12 $0.13
Well 1 Total E e 11/16/2005 37,765      a 12/19/2005 49,722      11,957       27.35$     1,088.04$  1,115.39$            
Well 1 Total G a 11/15/2005 1,513        a 12/16/2005 1,539        . 30          15.00$     35.15$       50.15$                 

Well 1 Total E a 12/19/2005 49,722      e 1/19/2006 55,943      6,221         27.35$     566.85$     594.20$               
Well 1 Total G a 12/16/2005 1,539        a 1/18/2006 1,581        48          15.00$     55.05$       70.05$                 

296.5        $0.41 $1.03
Well 1 Total E e 1/19/2006 55,943      a 2/15/2006 51,059      (4,884)       19.78$     (444.28)$   (424.50)$             (2 months comb. due to est. meter read)
Well 1 Total G a 1/18/2006 1,581        a 2/16/2006 1,623        48          9.39$       56.16$       65.55$                 

Well 1 Total E a 2/15/2006 51,059      e 3/20/2006 57,565      6,506         22.93$     649.82$     672.75$               
Well 1 Total G a 2/16/2006 1,623        a 3/17/2006 1,662        45          7.25$       50.38$       57.63$                 

6,191.8     $0.12 $0.14
Well 1 Total E e 3/20/2006 57,565      a 4/18/2006 58,507      942            18.46$     94.09$       112.55$               (2 months comb. due to est. meter read)
Well 1 Total G a 3/17/2006 1,662        a 4/18/2006 1,681        21          8.00$       22.65$       30.65$                 

Village of Jackson Wells - 2006 Energy Usage Breakdown and Analysis

EnergyAnalysis2.xls



Facility U
se

 T
yp

e

E
le

ct
ric

ity
 o

r G
as

S
ta

rt 
- A

ct
. O

r E
st

.

S
ta

rt 
D

at
e

 S
ta

rt 
R

ea
di

ng
 

E
nd

 - 
A

ct
. O

r E
st

.

E
nd

 D
at

e

 E
nd

 R
ea

di
ng

 

 k
W

h 
C

on
s.

 o
r k

W
 D

em
an

d 

 T
he

rm
s 

(a
dj

.) 

B
as

e 
C

ha
rg

es

U
sa

ge
 C

ha
rg

es

To
ta

l C
ha

rg
es

 - (
an

d 
%

 o
f 

E
le

c.
)

 1
00

0 
ga

ls
. P

um
pe

d 

El
ec

tr
ic

 U
sa

ge
 $

 c
os

t /
 

10
00

 g
al

s.

Total $/1000

Well 2 Total E e 1/20/2005 62,217      a 2/18/2005 62,639      422            23.41$     35.30$       58.71$                 
Well 2 Total G a 1/19/2005 9,346        a 2/17/2005 9,418        . 74          15.00$     63.12$       78.12$                 

         571.0 $0.06 $0.24

Well 2 Total E a 2/18/2005 62,639      e 3/21/2005 64,120      1,481         26.09$     124.53$     150.62$               
Well 2 Total G a 2/17/2005 9,418        a 3/18/2005 9,486        70          15.00$     58.46$       73.46$                 

1,265.0     $0.16 $0.29
Well 2 Total E e 3/21/2005 64,120      a 4/18/2005 64,959      839            24.57$     73.92$       98.49$                 
Well 2 Total G a 3/18/2005 9,486        a 4/19/2005 9,525        . 39          15.00$     34.26$       49.26$                 

Well 2 Total E a 4/18/2005 64,959      e 5/19/2005 66,284      1,325         25.85$     116.73$     142.58$               
Well 2 Total G a 4/19/2005 9,525        a 5/20/2005 9,549        24          15.00$     20.43$       35.43$                 

1,498.0     $0.17 $0.24
Well 2 Total E e 5/19/2005 66,284      a 6/16/2005 67,801      1,517         26.42$     137.45$     163.87$               
Well 2 Total G a 5/20/2005 9,549        a 6/19/2005 9,557        . 8            15.00$     6.25$         21.25$                 

Well 2 Total E a 6/16/2005 67,801      e 7/20/2005 70,788      2,987         27.35$     270.65$     298.00$               
Well 2 Total G a 6/19/2005 9,557        e 7/19/2005 9,565        8            15.00$     6.21$         21.21$                 

1,777.0     $0.17 $0.22
Well 2 Total E e 7/20/2005 70,788      a 8/18/2005 71,177      389            23.41$     35.25$       58.66$                 
Well 2 Total G a 7/19/2005 9,565        a 8/17/2005 9,571        . 6            15.00$     4.98$         19.98$                 

Well 2 Total E a 8/18/2005 71,177      e 9/19/2005 72,994      1,817         27.29$     164.64$     191.93$               
Well 2 Total G a 8/17/2005 9,571        a 9/16/2005 9,579        8            15.00$     7.56$         22.56$                 

2,708.0     $0.17 $0.21
Well 2 Total E e 9/19/2005 72,994      a 10/14/2005 76,205      3,211         27.35$     290.95$     318.30$               
Well 2 Total G a 9/16/2005 9,579        a 10/17/2005 9,588        . 9            15.00$     10.27$       25.27$                 

Well 2 Total E a 10/14/2005 76,205      e 11/16/2005 77,613      1,408         26.18$     127.58$     153.76$               
Well 2 Total G a 10/17/2005 9,588        a 11/15/2005 9,616        28          15.00$     34.25$       49.25$                 

1,267.0     $0.19 $0.34
Well 2 Total E e 11/16/2005 77,613      a 12/19/2005 78,787      1,174         25.56$     106.84$     132.40$               
Well 2 Total G a 11/15/2005 9,616        a 12/16/2005 9,687        . 72          15.00$     84.35$       99.35$                 

Well 2 Total E a 12/19/2005 78,787      e 1/19/2006 80,173      1,386         26.14$     126.29$     152.43$               
Well 2 Total G a 12/16/2005 9,687        a 1/18/2006 9,764        78          15.00$     89.45$       104.45$               

1,014.5     $0.18 $0.42
Well 2 Total E e 1/19/2006 80,173      a 2/16/2006 80,799      626            18.42$     61.09$       79.51$                 (2 months comb. due to est. meter read)
Well 2 Total G a 1/18/2006 9,764        a 2/16/2006 9,830        67          9.39$       78.41$       87.80$                 

Well 2 Total E a 2/16/2006 80,799      e 3/20/2006 82,292      1,493         22.27$     149.12$     171.39$               
Well 2 Total G a 2/16/2006 9,830        a 3/17/2006 9,890        62          7.25$       69.40$       76.65$                 

1,257.9     $0.20 $0.34
Well 2 Total E e 3/20/2006 82,292      a 4/18/2006 83,357      1,065         18.83$     106.37$     125.20$               (2 months comb. due to est. meter read)
Well 2 Total G a 3/17/2006 9,890        a 4/18/2006 9,929        39          8.00$       42.06$       50.06$                 

EnergyAnalysis2.xls



Facility U
se

 T
yp

e

E
le

ct
ric

ity
 o

r G
as

S
ta

rt 
- A

ct
. O

r E
st

.

S
ta

rt 
D

at
e

 S
ta

rt 
R

ea
di

ng
 

E
nd

 - 
A

ct
. O

r E
st

.

E
nd

 D
at

e

 E
nd

 R
ea

di
ng

 

 k
W

h 
C

on
s.

 o
r k

W
 D

em
an

d 

 T
he

rm
s 

(a
dj

.) 

B
as

e 
C

ha
rg

es

U
sa

ge
 C

ha
rg

es

To
ta

l C
ha

rg
es

 - (
an

d 
%

 o
f 

E
le

c.
)

 1
00

0 
ga

ls
. P

um
pe

d 

El
ec

tr
ic

 U
sa

ge
 $

 c
os

t /
 

10
00

 g
al

s.

Total $/1000
Well 3 (no gas at wellhouse)

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 1/6/2005 71,577      a 2/7/2005 75,812      4,235         269.73$     24%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 79.60         342.44$     31%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 6,847         436.09$     39%
Well 3  Total E a 80,018      a 91,100      11,082       59.30$     1,048.26$  1,107.56$            5,111.0     $0.21 $0.22

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 2/7/2005 75,812      a 3/9/2005 79,706      3,894         248.01$     25%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 75.10         321.28$     32%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 5,880         374.49$     37%
Well 3  Total E a 91,100      a 874           9,774         59.30$     943.78$     1,003.08$            4,745.0     $0.20 $0.21

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 3/9/2005 79,706      a 4/6/2005 82,731      3,025         201.79$     23%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 75.00         299.25$     34%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 4,898         326.74$     37%
Well 3  Total E a 874           a 8,797        7,932         59.30$     827.78$     887.08$               4,355.0     $0.19 $0.20

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 4/6/2005 82,731      a 5/6/2005 87,166      4,435         302.19$     27%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 73.80         329.89$     30%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 6,195         422.13$     38%
Well 3  Total E a 8,797        a 19,427      10,630       59.30$     1,054.21$  1,113.51$            7,369.0     $0.14 $0.15

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 5/6/2005 87,166      a 6/6/2005 91,616      4,450         306.09$     25%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 69.50         332.27$     27%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 7,847         539.75$     44%
Well 3  Total E a 19,427      a 31,724      12,297       59.30$     1,178.11$  1,237.41$            8,888.0     $0.13 $0.14

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 6/6/2005 91,616      a 7/8/2005 97,232      5,616         388.90$     29%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 70.10         372.94$     28%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 7,298         505.39$     38%
Well 3  Total E a 31,724      a 44,638      12,914       62.25$     1,267.23$  1,329.48$            8,652.0     $0.15 $0.15

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 7/8/2005 97,232      a 8/4/2005 1,344        4,112         284.76$     27%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 69.90         336.64$     32%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 5,548         384.20$     36%
Well 3  Total E a 44,638      a 54,298      9,660         62.25$     1,005.60$  1,067.85$            5,819.0     $0.17 $0.18

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 8/4/2005 1,344        a 9/2/2005 5,994        4,650         322.01$     27%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 69.50         348.07$     29%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 6,551         453.65$     38%
Well 3  Total E a 54,298      a 65,499      11,201       62.25$     1,123.73$  1,185.98$            8,529.0     $0.13 $0.14

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 9/2/2005 5,994        a 10/4/2005 8,029        2,035         140.92$     10%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 69.60         285.08$     21%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 12,385       857.66$     64%
Well 3  Total E a 65,499      a 79,919      14,420       62.25$     1,283.66$  1,345.91$            9,658.0     $0.13 $0.14

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 10/4/2005 8,029        a 11/2/2005 8,714        685            47.44$       6%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 69.40         252.62$     34%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 5,397         373.74$     51%
Well 3  Total E a 79,919      a 86,001      6,082         62.25$     673.80$     736.05$               3,927.0     $0.17 $0.19

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 11/2/2005 8,714        a 12/6/2005 10,156      1,442         99.90$       10%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 68.50         270.33$     28%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 7,641         529.38$     55%
Well 3  Total E a 86,001      a 95,084      9,083         62.25$     899.61$     961.86$               3,664.0     $0.25 $0.26

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 12/6/2005 10,156      a 1/6/2006 12,833      2,677         185.63$     16%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 12/22/2005 74.70         327.49$     28%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a 12/6/2005 a 1/6/2006 8,459         586.54$     50%
Well 3  Total E a 12/6/2005 95,084      a 1/6/2006 6,220        11,136       62.25$     1,099.66$  1,161.91$            5,067.5     $0.22 $0.23

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 1/6/2006 12,833   a 2/6/2006 16,622      3,789         275.27$     22%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 1/24/2006 74.60         329.38$     26%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a 1/6/2006 a 2/6/2006 8,124         590.21$     47%
Well 3  Total E a 1/6/2006 6,220     a 2/6/2006 18,133      11,913       62.57$     1,194.86$  1,257.43$            6,311.5     $0.19 $0.20

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 2/6/2006 16,622   a 3/6/2006 20,298      3,676         289.19$     24%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 2/6/2006 79.40         290.27$     24%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a 2/6/2006 a 3/6/2006 7,062         555.57$     47% 5,609.0     $0.10 $0.21
Well 3  Total E a 2/6/2006 18,133   a 3/6/2006 28,871      10,738       58.56$     1,135.03$  1,193.59$            

Well 3  On-Peak Cons. E a 3/6/2006 20,298   a 4/4/2006 24,742      4,444         349.61$     32%
Well 3  Peak Demand E a 4/3/2006 75.70         308.67$     28%
Well 3  Off-Peak Cons. E a 3/6/2006 a 4/4/2006 4,888         384.54$     35% 5,231.2     $0.07 $0.21
Well 3  Total E a 3/6/2006 28,871   a 4/4/2006 38,203      9,332         60.08$     1,042.82$  1,102.90$            

EnergyAnalysis2.xls



Facility U
se

 T
yp

e

E
le

ct
ric

ity
 o

r G
as

S
ta

rt 
- A

ct
. O

r E
st

.

S
ta

rt 
D

at
e

 S
ta

rt 
R

ea
di

ng
 

E
nd

 - 
A

ct
. O

r E
st

.

E
nd

 D
at

e

 E
nd

 R
ea

di
ng

 

 k
W

h 
C

on
s.

 o
r k

W
 D

em
an

d 

 T
he

rm
s 

(a
dj

.) 

B
as

e 
C

ha
rg

es

U
sa

ge
 C

ha
rg

es

To
ta

l C
ha

rg
es

 - (
an

d 
%

 o
f 

E
le

c.
)

 1
00

0 
ga

ls
. P

um
pe

d 

El
ec

tr
ic

 U
sa

ge
 $

 c
os

t /
 

10
00

 g
al

s.

Total $/1000
Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 12/15/2004 3,815        a 1/17/2005 3,899        6,720         428.00$     26%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 148.00       608.28$     36%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 9,040         575.76$     34%
Well 4  Total E a 9,459        a 9,656        15,760       59.30$     1,612.04$  1,671.34$            
Well 4 Total G a 8,580        a 8,871        336        15.00$     296.77$     311.77$               

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 1/17/2005 3,899        a 2/16/2005 3,971        5,760         366.85$     24%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 148.00       586.97$     38%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 8,480         540.09$     35%
Well 4  Total E a 9,656        a 9,834        14,240       59.30$     1,493.91$  1,553.21$            
Well 4 Total G a 8,871        a 9,133        302        15.00$     257.53$     272.53$               6,340.0     $0.29

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 2/16/2005 3,971        a 3/16/2005 4,020        3,920         249.66$     19%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 148.00       540.79$     40%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 7,760         494.23$     37%
Well 4  Total E a 9,834        a 9,980        11,680       59.30$     1,284.68$  1,343.98$            
Well 4 Total G a 9,133        a 9,344        243        15.00$     203.34$     218.34$               4,924.0     $0.32

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 3/16/2005 4,020        a 4/14/2005 4,069        3,920         265.90$     20%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 148.00       540.79$     40%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 6,960         472.12$     35%
Well 4  Total E a 9,980        a 10,116      10,880       59.30$     1,278.81$  1,338.11$            
Well 4 Total G a 9,344        a 9,461        132        15.00$     114.42$     129.42$               4,301.0     $0.34

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 4/14/2005 4,069        a 5/16/2005 4,128        4,720         321.62$     25%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 148.00       562.10$     44%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 4,800         327.06$     26%
Well 4  Total E a 10,116      a 10,235      9,520         59.30$     1,210.78$  1,270.08$            
Well 4 Total G a 9,461        a 9,539        87          15.00$     75.31$       90.31$                 3,464.0     $0.39

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 5/16/2005 4,128        a 6/14/2005 4,189        4,880         337.38$     23%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 145.60       608.28$     42%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 6,480         447.99$     31%
Well 4  Total E a 10,235      a 10,377      11,360       59.30$     1,393.65$  1,452.95$            
Well 4 Total G a 9,539        a 9,544        6            15.00$     4.71$         19.71$                 5,088.0     $0.29

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 6/14/2005 4,189        a 7/15/2005 4,301        8,960         620.47$     28%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 144.00       703.87$     31%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 12,400       858.70$     38%
Well 4  Total E a 10,377      a 10,644      21,360       62.25$     2,183.04$  2,245.29$            
Well 4 Total G a 9,544        a 9,547        3            15.00$     2.33$         17.33$                 9,807.0     $0.23

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 7/15/2005 4,301        a 8/15/2005 4,401        8,000         554.00$     24%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 144.00       683.14$     30%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 13,920       963.96$     43%
Well 4  Total E a 10,644      a 10,918      21,920       62.25$     2,201.10$  2,263.35$            
Well 4 Total G a 9,547        a 9,575        31          15.00$     25.50$       40.50$                 10,056.0   $0.23

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 8/15/2005 4,401        a 9/14/2005 4,464        5,040         349.03$     25%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 143.20       607.17$     43%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 5,760         398.88$     28%
Well 4  Total E a 10,918      a 11,053      10,800       62.25$     1,355.08$  1,417.33$            
Well 4 Total G a 9,575        a 9,578        3            15.00$     2.80$         17.80$                 4,006.0     $0.36

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 9/14/2005 4,464        a 10/13/2005 4,474        800            55.39$       10%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 40.80         158.30$     29%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 4,000         277.00$     50%
Well 4  Total E a 11,053      a 11,113      4,800         62.25$     490.69$     552.94$               
Well 4 Total G a 9,578        a 9,584        7            15.00$     7.83$         22.83$                 1,542.0     $0.37

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 10/13/2005 4,474        a 11/11/2005 4,505        2,480         171.74$     11%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 139.20       533.41$     35%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 10,960       758.97$     50%
Well 4  Total E a 11,113      a 11,281      13,440       62.25$     1,464.12$  1,526.37$            
Well 4 Total G a 9,584        a 9,756        193        15.00$     237.16$     252.16$               6,371.0     $0.28

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 11/11/2005 4,505        a 12/14/2006 4,521        1,280         88.71$       6%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 140.00       516.42$     36%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a a 11,120       770.66$     54%
Well 4  Total E a 11,281      a 11,436      12,400       62.25$     1,375.79$  1,438.04$            
Well 4 Total G a 9,756        a 9,974        249        15.00$     293.08$     308.08$               5,290.0     $0.33

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 12/14/2005 4,521        a 1/16/2006 4,572        4,080         282.91$     15%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 1/10/2006 140.80       593.61$     31%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a 12/14/2005 a 1/16/2006 14,320       992.95$     51% 8,386.0     $0.12 $0.26
Well 4  Total E a 12/14/2005 11,436      a 1/16/2006 11,666      18,400       62.25$     1,869.47$  1,931.72$            
Well 4 Total G a 12/14/2005 9,974        a 1/16/2006 10,180      235        15.00$     269.32$     284.32$               

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 1/16/2006 4,572     a 2/14/2006 4,630        4,640         350.10$     19%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 1/16/2006 140.00       504.79$     28%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a 1/16/2006 a 2/14/2006 11,680       881.28$     49% 7,358.5     $0.12 $0.28
Well 4  Total E a 1/16/2006 11,666   a 2/14/2006 11,870      16,320       60.83$     1,736.17$  1,797.00$            
Well 4 Total G a 1/16/2006 10,180      a 2/14/2006 10,364      210        9.92$       245.88$     255.80$               

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 2/14/2006 4,630     a 3/16/2006 4,692        4,960         390.20$     26%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 2/14/2006 140.80       464.47$     30%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a 2/14/2006 a 3/16/2006 7,760         610.48$     40% 5,473.0     $0.11 $0.33
Well 4  Total E a 2/14/2006 11,870   a 3/16/2006 12,029      12,720       61.61$     1,465.15$  1,526.76$            
Well 4 Total G a 2/14/2006 10,364      a 3/16/2006 10,585      254        7.50$       284.89$     292.39

Well 4  On-Peak Cons. E a 3/16/2006 4,692     a 4/13/2006 4,701        720            56.64$       4%
Well 4  Peak Demand E a 4/7/2006 14.40         54.52$       4%
Well 4  Off-Peak Cons. E a 3/16/2006 a 4/13/2006 15,040       1,183.20$  87% 5,657.8     $0.21 $0.24
Well 4  Total E a 3/16/2006 12,029   a 4/13/2006 12,226      15,760       58.56$     1,294.36$  1,352.92$            
Well 4 Total G (no gas bill provided)

EnergyAnalysis2.xls

































 

June 30, 2015 Board of Public Works Minutes 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 

DRAFT MINUTES   
Board of Public Works Meeting 
Tuesday, June 30, 2015 – 7:00 P.M.  
Jackson Village Hall 
N168W20733 Main Street  
1. Call to Order and Roll Call.  

Chairman Tr. Don Olson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
Members present: Tr. Jack Lippold, Tr. Scott Mittelsteadt, Brian Heckendorf, Linda Granec, 
Scott Thielmann, and Corinne Benson. 
Members excused: All Present. 
Staff present:  Brian Kober and John Walther.   

2. Approval of Minutes for May 26, 2015, meeting.  
Motion by Corinne Benson, second by Brian Heckendorf to approve the minutes of the  
May 26, 2015, Board of Public Works meeting.           
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.    

3. Pay Request #5 – Digester Improvement Project. 
 
Brian Kober reviewed the 5th pay request which was developed without the change order.  
Motion by Tr. Mittelsteadt, second by Corinne Benson to recommend the Village Board approve 
Pay Request #5 for the Digester Improvement Project in an amount not to exceed $48,704.89 to 
Sabel Mechanical.      
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.    

4. Change Order #1 – Digester Improvement Project.  
Brian Kober reviewed the change order.  The change order is for $106,783.60.  There were two 
proposals from Sable Mechanical.  Brian reviewed the report from Clark Dietz.  This is the same 
cover from 1980.  They have started sandblasting and have found more structure that needs 
replaced.  To replace the cover would not be feasible as it would be sixteen weeks before we 
would see a new cover.  A new cover would be $300,000 or more.  The Village is running with 
one digester.   Brian reviewed the pay schedule.  An additional pay request will go straight to the 
Budget & Finance and Village Board because of timing.   
Motion by Scott Thielmann, second by Tr. Lippold to recommend the Village Board approve the 
change order #1 for the digester improvement project in an amount not to exceed $106,783.60.          
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.  

5. Jackson Water Utility Master Plan Update.  
Brian Kober reviewed the proposal.  The Water Utility Master Plan is from 2006 and we do have 
the model to use.  Could be a twenty or fifteen year plan?  The system has expanded.  Motion by 
Scott Thielmann, second by Linda Granec, to recommend the Village Board approve the Master 
Plan Proposal in an amount not to exceed $9,850.     
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.  

6. Reinstalling Cedar Creek Business Sign.  
Brian Kober reviewed location of the Cedar Creek Business Sign.  It will be south of where the 
existing sign sat.  He will get a street opening permit from the DOT.  The total bill is $6,209.19.   
Motion by Tr. Olson, second by Tr. Mittelsteadt to recommend the Village Board approve the 



 

June 30, 2015 Board of Public Works Minutes 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

Cedar Creek Business Sign in an amount not to exceed $6,209.19, which includes $2,434.19 to 
We Energies and $3775.00 to Appleton Sign.     
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.  

7. Review of quotes for painting of Blue Water Tower – Tower Drive.  
 Brian reviewed the quotes to repaint the blue water tower, light blue with lettering.  Motion by 
 Tr. Mittelsteadt, second by Linda Granec to recommend the Village Board approve the quote for 
 Superior Tank Company in an amount not to exceed $43,400.   

Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.    
8. Discussion on submittal of CMAQ for STH 60 and CTH P Intersection.  
 Brian commented that this is to mitigate air quality.  The real key is to get the DOT to 
 communicate what the intersection will be and to obtain the Park and Ride parking lot.  This is 
 an important intersection for pedestrian safe travel.    The intersection is earmarked at 2019.    
9. Review of Jackson Telecomm Utility and Ethoplex Contract.   
 Brian reported that he and John Walther did meet with Keefe John.  The Village continues to be 
 patient and work with him.  Keefe was supposed to give a memo on the status of Ethoplex.  A 
 memo has not been received.        
10. Director of Public Works Report.  

Brian Kober reviewed the Public Works Report. Brian reported that the DNR has been secured 
for the shared use path.  Also, there was a preconstruction meeting for Georgetown Drive.       

 Motion by Linda Granec, second by Corinne Benson to place the report on file.   
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.  

 11. Citizens/Village Staff to address the Board.  
 Brian commented that prior to the July meeting there will be a tour of the Fire Department and 

Street Department.  Other Departments will be toured at the next meeting.    
 Brian thanked Tr. Mittelsteadt for all of his work at Action in Jackson.  
 Brian reported that Coffeeville has gotten the approval from the DOT for the second access.    
 Scott Thielmann commented that there are several homes with brush out on Ash Drive.  Brian 

commented that the next brush pick up is on July 20th.  
 Scott Thielmann commented on frustration with round-a-bouts and those that do not know how 

to properly yield at the round-a-bouts.  
 John Walther gave an update on Operation Home.  The next fundraiser will be on Sunday, 

September 20th from 3 – 6 p.m. at the Jackson Community Center. This is a tailgating fundraiser 
that will be sponsored by several area organizations.  

 12. Adjourn.  
 Motion by Scott Thielmann, second by Tr. Lippold to adjourn at 8:07 p.m.     

Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.  
 
Respectfully submitted by: Deanna L. Boldrey, Village Clerk-Treasurer 























STAFF REVIEW COMMENTS 
Plan Commission Meeting – June 25, 2015 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

1. Planned Unit Development Amendment - Poblocki Sign Company LLC, Rytec 
Corporation – Sign at Cedar Parkway. 

 

Building Inspection 
 

 Existing wall sign on building will remain on the building with this approval. 
 A separate Sign Permit shall be applied for the installation of the new sign. 

 
Public Works/Engineering 

 
 No additional comments. 
 

Police Department 
 

 No comments. 
 
Fire Department 

 
 No comments. 

 
Administrative/Planning 

 
 Recommend approval. 

 
 

2. Conditional Use – Dasko - Fence Height – Hunters Road. 
 

Building Inspection 
 

 Owner seeks a 12” higher fence height in the front yard set-back than what the Village 
Code permits (36” max.).  

 A separate Fence Permit shall be required for the installation of the fence along with 
signed approval letters from the adjoining property owners to allow the fence to be 
installed within the three (3) foot area from the property lines. 

 Since a portion of the proposed fence will be installed within the utility easement, a 
signed copy of the agreement between WE Energies and the Homeowners shall be 
submitted with the Fence Permit Application.  Owner shall comply with all the 
conditions set by WE Energies. 

 Recommend the fence be installed a min. of three (3) feet beyond the front yard set-
back along Chateau Drive.  

 
Public Works/Engineering 

 
 The installation of the fence shall not prohibit the proper drainage of the lot and the 

adjacent lots in the area.  The fence is being placed through a 20 ft drainage easement.   



STAFF REVIEW COMMENTS 
Plan Commission Meeting – June 25, 2015 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Police Department 
 

 No comments. 
 
Fire Department 

 
 No Comments. 

 
Administrative/Planning 

 
 No additional comments. 

 
 

3. Conditional Use – DeRite Shine Commercial Services – Trucking Company, Meadow 
Lane. 

 

Building Inspection 
 

 Owner currently is operating business at their personal residence in the Town of 
Jackson and has run out of room and is looking to store up to 5 trucks at this site.  
Plans for a future building and office area are currently being discussed. 

 Existing building currently does not have sewer and water to the building.  In order for 
any minor repairs to be completed on the trucks, a uni-sex bathroom shall be installed, 
a make-up air intake and exhaust system shall be installed in the current building and 
the building shall have a heating system installed. 

 
Public Works/Engineering 

 
 Per the Village Code, a landscape barrier or berm is necessary to separate a commercial use 

from a residential use.  The barrier shall be installed on the south side of the property. 
 

Police Department 
 

 No comments. 
 
Fire Department 

 
 Fire Extinguishers shall be installed per the applicable national, state and local codes. 
 Exit lighting shall be installed per the applicable national, state and local codes. 
 Knox Box Entry System shall be installed per village code. 

 
Administrative/Planning 

 
 No additional comments. 

 
 



STAFF REVIEW COMMENTS 
Plan Commission Meeting – June 25, 2015 

Page 3 of 3 
 

4. Concept Plan – The Laser Shop – Industrial Drive. 
 

Building Inspection 
 

 Current zoning for this property is M-1 (Limited Manufacturing District).  Proposed use 
of this vacant area does not comply with the current zoning.  If the Board does allow 
storage to occur, recommend a sunset date to be set (example: review it in 3 years and 
see where the business is in relation to their building expansion). 

 
Public Works/Engineering 

 
 The zoning for the property is M – 1 Limited Manufacturing District is intended to provide 

for manufacturing, industrial, and related uses.  Site plan approvals for the zoning usually 
restricted property owners from outside storage of equipment or material.  Recommend 
denial of the concept plan request. 

 
Police Department 

 
 No additional comments. 

 
Fire Department 

 
 A Knox Box Entry system shall be installed for the gate in a location to be determined 

by the fire department. 
 

Administrative/Planning 
 

 This area is in TID #2 and is zoned M1-Limited Manufacturing, and therefore non-
compliant with the district. 

 Recommend denial of the concept.  
 

 



 

 

 

DRAFT MINUTES        
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING  
Thursday – June 25, 2015 – 7:00 pm 
Jackson Village Hall 
N168W20733 Main St 
Jackson, WI  53037 
         
1. Call to Order & Roll Call.  

 
  Chairperson Mike Schwab called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
  Members present: Tr. Kruepke, Tr. Emmrich, Steve Schoen, and Peter Habel. 
  Members excused: Doug Alfke and Jeff Dalton. 
  Staff present: John Walther. 

 
2. Minutes – April 30, 2015, Plan Commission Meeting. 
  

Motion by Peter Habel, second by Steve Schoen to approve the minutes of the April 30, 
2015 Plan Commission meeting. Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 

 
3. Planned Unit Development Amendment - Poblocki Sign Company LLC, Rytec 

Corporation – Sign at Cedar Parkway. 
 
 Poblocki Sign Company, LLC requested this item to be removed from the agenda. 
 
4. Conditional Use – Dasko - Fence Height – Hunters Road. 
 

Motion by Peter Habel, second by Tr. Emmrich to recommend to the Village Board the 
approval of the fence per staff comments. Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 

 
5. Conditional Use – DeRite Shine Commercial Services – Trucking Company, 
 Meadow Lane. 
 

Motion by Peter Habel, second by Steve Schoen to refer this item to the next Plan 
Commission meeting.  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

6. Concept Plan – The Laser Shop – Industrial Drive. 
 

After discussion, a motion was made by Peter Habel, second by Tr. Kruepke to 
recommend to the Village Board denial of the concept plan per staff comments. 
Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

7. Citizens to address the Plan Commission.   
 

There were no citizens to address the Plan Commission. 
 

8. Adjourn. 
 
Motion by Tr. Kruepke, second by Peter Habel to adjourn.  
Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Meeting was adjourned at 7:21 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by John M. Walther – Administrator 


	07142015 Village Board Agenda.
	4. Dasko Fence Height Approval - Hunters Road.
	Application.
	Impact Statement.
	Map.

	5. 06092015 Draft Minutes.
	5.  Operators Licenses.
	6. Ordinance 15-03 An Ordinance Repealing Chapter 7.14.
	7. Bids Received for Old Ambulance 1250.
	7. Pay Request #5 Digester Improvement Project.
	7. Change Order #1 - Digester Improvement Project.
	7. Pay Request #6 - Digester Improvement Project.
	7. Review of Quotes for Painting of Blue Water Tower - Tower Drive.
	7. Jackson Water Utility Master Plan Update.
	Scope of Services.
	Water Analysis Report.

	7. Reinstalling Cedar Creek Business Signs.
	06302015 Board of Public Works Minutes.
	8. Concept Plan - The Laser Shop - Industrial Drive.
	Staff Comments.
	06252015 Plan Commission Draft Minutes.



